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CHaIrMan’s Message

In 2015, the CrIb, which commenced 
operations as a key support service 
provider to the banking and financial 
industry in 1990 under Credit 
Information bureau of sri lanka act, 
no. 18 of 1990, passed the milestone 
of 25 years in operations. In terms of 
the Credit Information bureau of sri 
lanka (amendment) act, no. 42 of 2008, 
functions statutorily assigned to the CrIb 
are immensely supportive of strengthening 
the fundamentals of safe and sound 
banking and financial industry. those 
functions relate to improving credit 
and financial culture of the country, 

In 2015 CrIb issued 6.9 
Mn credit reports to the 
member institutions 
recording an increase of 
45% over previous year

undertaking research and training for 
lending institutions and maintaining 
official registry for moveable assets as 
may be directed by the government. In 
1990, the CrIb created its database for 
irregular loans over rs. 1 million in the 
banking sector and issued first credit 
report in December 1990.  In 2015, a total of 
6,914,872 credit reports was issued whereas 
the data base carried 7,562,310 credit data 
items. accordingly, services of the CrIb 
during the past 25 years have expanded 
with historical records reflecting its 
contribution to the improvement in credit 
quality and credit disciple being a core 
component of the safety and soundness 
of the banking and financial system and 
financial inclusion of the economy.

as per summary statistics, the growth 
momentum of operations of the CrIb in 
2015 continued even though at a lesser 
phase of financial results than in 2014 
(see table below). the lower growth of 
financial results was mainly attributable 
to significant reduction of the fee charged 
on credit reports to members by 37.5 per 
cent from rs 200 to rs 125 in order to 
reduce the cost of credit to members and 
borrowers. such a welcome facilitation was 
possible due to the strength the CrIb has 
built through its past performance.
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Operational Highlights of the CRIB - 2015 Growth, %

Performance Indicator 2006 2013 2014 2015 2014 2015 

Income (rs. Mn) 117 563 847 872 50.0 3.0

net Profit after taxation (rs. Mn) 102 565 788 811 39.4 2.9

Distribution of Credit  
reports (no. ‘000) 

802 3,117 4,766 6,915 52.9 45.1

shareholders’ Funds (rs.  Mn) 309 1,986 2,673 3,334 34.5 24.7

Investments (rs. Mn) 214 1,834 2,456 3,117 33.9 26.9

total assets (rs. Mn) 214 2,035 2,709 3,365 33.1 24.2

Cost-Income ratio (%) 27 26 21 23 -19.2 9.5

return on equity (%) 44 28 30 24 7.1 -20

rate of Dividends (%) 50 400 600 650 50.0 8.3

gross Dividends (rs. Mn) 12.5 100 150.0 162.5 50.0 8.3

earnings Per share (rs.) 406 2,261 3,152 3,244 39.4 2.9

net assets Per share (rs.) 1,237 7,944 10,693 13,338 34.6 24.7

Members (no.) 88 93 91 86 -2.1 -5.5

staff (no.) 42 26 24 26 -7.6 8.3

some of the highlights on improvement in use of CrIb services by members and public 
on were the increase in volume of data submission by member institutions by 14 per 
cent, the increase in distribution of credit reports to member institutions by 45 per 
cent, the increase in requests of individuals for their own credit reports (ireports) by 
40 per cent, the decline in customer complaints in respect of ireports service by 35 
per cent, the arrangement to shift the office of the CrIb to new spacious premises for 
further expansion and better facilities to all stakeholders with the state-of-the-art open 
inner office environment at the heart of Colombo’s banking and financial center and 
the completion of user testing of online facility for corporates to access their ireports 
through Internet. as customary, the technical accuracy of data was maintained at 99 per 
cent. In addition, following performance highlights are also noted.

 y  Improved ireport online service for 
individuals (general public) further 
with new features and options. 

 y  Commenced developing a simplified 
credit report system at low cost to be 
introduced to the micro finance sector 
by end of 2016 in view of the newly 
emerging micro finance sector pending 
from the new regulatory framework 
and increasing business volumes  in the 
banking and finance company sector.

 y  took measures to guide all lending 
institutions to be compliant with new 
nIC format introduced by the nIC 
Department and changed the CrIb 
system to accept data reported under 
the new format. 

 y  Conducted public awareness through 
user trainings for members and 
sMes and electronic and print media 
programmes where, as a part of this, 
celebrated its 25 years of service to 
the industry by felicitating its former 
Chairpersons, Directors and employees 
who were part of the first CrIb staff.

Chairman’s Message Contd.

In 2015, the rate of
dividend increased to
650 per cent with a
gross dividend of rs.
162.5 Mn as compared
to the dividend of rs 150
Mn distributed in 2014.
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the future direction 
of the CrIb is to move 
forward gradually to 
expand the scale and 
scope of its operations 
to provide a series of 
value-added products 
and services to the 
banking and financial 
sector in line with its 
statutory functions 
provided by the CrIb 
act.

the CrIb continued to transfer its 
financial gains to members by increasing 
capital reserves and distributing a 
substantial amount of profit as dividends.  
In 2015, the rate of dividend increased to 
650 per cent with a gross dividend of rs. 
162.5 Mn as compared to the dividend of rs 
150 Mn distributed in 2014.the continued 
increase in earnings per share to rs. 3,244 
and net assets per share to rs. 13,338 shows 
the strength of the shareholder value 
created by the CrIb in 2015. the ownership 
structure of the CrIb continued to remain 
as 19.3% by the Central bank, 57.99% by 
commercial banks, 16.62% specialised 

banks and 5.57% by finance companies and 
leasing companies.

the future direction of the CrIb is to move 
forward gradually to expand the scale and 
scope of its operations to provide a series 
of value-added products and services to 
the banking and financial sector in line 
with its statutory functions provided by 
the CrIb act. the procurement of a new 
It system to improve technological and 
operational efficiency of the CrIb reached 
the final stage of evaluation and is expected 
to complete by end of 2016. this system 
will replace the existing system which was 
commissioned in 2008. the new system 
will facilitate bringing insurance and other 
non-financial credit segments such as 
statutory payments, telecommunication 
and utilities to increase the coverage of 
credit profiles of persons as well as to offer 
sophisticated credit service options such 
as credit rating and scoring and credit 
research. this will help improve credit risk 
analysis on corporates and individuals 
and further promote credit market and 
discipline in credit risk management by all 
stakeholders. In this perspective, the board 
is in the process of a major overhaul of 
the business and operational model of the 
CrIb and re-profiling its cost structure.
 
on behalf of the board of the CrIb, I take 
this opportunity to extend my sincere 
thanks to staff, members, clients and 
service providers of the CrIb for their 

continued support to the CrIb to enable 
it to stay relevant to its evolving market 
environment while record another year 
of active performance. Finally, I deeply 
appreciate the responsibilities discharged 
by the board in leading and monitoring 
the operations of the CrIb in terms of the 
provisions of the act and best practices. 
Further, I look forward to continued 
support of all of them to drive the CrIb 
towards creating a culture of high credit 
quality and discipline that promotes wider 
financial inclusion among all segments of 
the economy and strengthens the financial 
system stability of the country.

P. Samarasiri
Chairman
(Deputy Governor, Central Bank of Sri Lanka)
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Key PerForManCe InDICators

6.9Mn
number of credit reports issued 

50.3%
borrowers in database as a % of adult 
population 

45%
y-o-y increase in demand for credit reports 

7.9Mn
number of borrowers with active credit 
records 

3%
y - o - y growth in profitability

3.3bn
total assets

3,242 
ePs

99.3%
Data quality efficiency ( as a % of total 
credit portfolio)

1.38%
Customer disputes against ireports issued  

3%
y - o - y growth in revenue

23.1Mn
number of records (credit facilities) in the 
system (including settlements)

13.8%
y-o-y growth in total credit portfolio 
submitted
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FInanCIal HIgHlIgHts

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015
 
OPERATING RESULTS - ( Rs.’ 000 ) 
Income 307,898 444,296 430,163 563,690 847,877 872,923
Expenses (111,870) (140,283) (139,934) (148,055) (179,739) (199,634)
Operating Profit / (Loss) 196,028 304,013 290,229 415,635 668,138 673,289
Other Income 84,261 69,171 121,273 204,736 166,566 191,077
Net Profit Before Extra Ordinary Items 280,289 373,184 411,502 620,371 834,704 864,366
Extra Ordinary Items - -
Net Profit After Extra Ordinary Items 280,289 373,184 411,502 620,371 834,704 864,366
Taxation (25,762) (21,728) (36,348) (54,883) (46,590) (53,473)
Net Profit After Extra Ordinary Items & Taxation 254,527 351,456 375,154 565,488 788,114 810,893
 
SHAREHOLDERS FUNDS - ( Rs.’ 000 ) 
Share Capital 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000 25,000
Reserve 427,418 567,518 817,435 817,901 1,117,357 1,118,593
Accumulated Fund 374,986 551,769 627,157 1,143,595 1,524,488 2,191,009
  
LIABILITIES - ( Rs. ‘ 000 ) 
Creditors & Other Payables 56,185 35,287 36,642 45,997 32,680 25,774
Deferred Liabilities 1,328 2,187 2,435 3,275 9,819 4,351
 
ASSETS - (Rs. ‘ 000 ) 
Non Current Assets 53,508 75,646 59,287 60,985 48,889 29,816
Investments 705,956 979,871 1,360,380 1,755,999 2,455,562 3,117,183
Inventories 278 387 389 369 342 282
Trade & Other Receivables 118,396 103,784 79,968 119,423 182,618 188,901
Cash & Bank Balances 6,780 22,072 8,644 19,734 21,932 28,544
 
RATIOS 
Return on Average Shareholders’ Funds (%) 31% 31% 26% 28% 30% 24%
Income Growth (%) 89% 44% -3% 31% 50% 3%
Return on Average Assets (%) 22% 26% 25% 29% 29% 24%
Rate of Dividends (%) 150% 200% 200% 400% 600% 650%
Gross Dividends (Rs. ‘ 000 ) 37,500 50,000 50,000 75,000 150,000 162,500
 
SHARE INFORMATION 
Earning Per Share (Rs.) 1,018 1,406 1,501 2,262 3,152 3,244
Net Assets Per Share (Rs.) 3,310 4,577 5,878 7,629 10,667 13,338
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HIstorICal MIlestones

1990 1991

2005

1992

1995

1996

1997

2000

2004

act no. 18 of 1990 set the 
foundation for the first 
Credit bureau in south 
asia.

the database for 
irregular loans over rs. 
1Mn was created and 
the first credit report 
was issued in December 
1990.

24 registered finance companies joined the 
bureau as shareholders.

Commencement of CrIb modernisation 
project.

the board first decided to levy a charge on 
credit reports - rs. 35/- and rs. 20/- per report  
transmitted through fax and post respectively.

1st amendment to CrIb act no. 8 of 1995 
was passed in the Parliament.

the office of the bureau was totally 
destroyed due to the bomb explosion 
at the Central bank and recommenced 
operations with restoration of the system 
from data backups.

Credit card defaulters database started.

10th anniversary of the commencement of 
operations.

CrIb with Cbsl and the World bank jointly 
hold the first south asian Credit bureau 
Conference in Colombo.
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2006

2008

2009

2013

2014

2010
automation project initiated with the 
technical partner Messrs Dun and 
bradstreet Information services.

launch of web-based Credit Information 
Management system (CrIMs).

2nd amendment to the CrIb act no. 42 of 
2008 was enacted.

2011
the establishment of the Disaster recovery 
Centre was completed.

establishment of a secured transactions 
register (str).

online version of ireport was launched.

Initiative with IFC to reform the secured 
transactions legal framework.

Initiation of 2nd phase of development 
programme.

2015
25th anniversary of CrIb

2012
signing of Declaration of secrecy by users 
of the bureau services, made compulsory.

Data submission was fully automated with 
in-house developed system.

Inaugural cricket tournament the governor’s 
trophy  for all member institutions.

Commencement of collection of 
information on dishonored cheques from 
commercial banks.

Issuing self inquiry reports (ireports) for 
the general public.

20th anniversary of the CrIb
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about tHIs rePort
we have attempted to improve the contents of 
our report by reviewing our previous report 

against the expectations of our key stakeholder 
groups and by refining the material topics select-

ed for discussion.  
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IntroDuCtIon

reporting period 1st January 2015 to 31st December 2015

Previous report 29th april 2015, CrIb annual report 2014 

reporting cycle annually

Contact point for questions. general Manager,
Credit Information bureau of sri lanka
the Whiteaways building, 
no 25, sir baron Jayathilake Mawatha, Colombo 01 
tel:+94 112 131313
Fax:+94112338259
email : lakmal@crib.lk

this report 
 

the annual financial statements of the CrIb are prepared in accordance with the sri lanka 
accounting standards (slFrs/lKas), issued by the Institute of Chartered accountants of sri 
lanka.

the financial statement also conform to the CrIb act no.18 of 1990 as amended by act no.8 
of 1995 and act no.42 of 2008

external assurance the Financial statements together, with the related notes, have been audited by external 
auditors, e&y Chartered accountants, sri lanka and their report is given on page 89 of this 
report. the CrIb financials have also faced bi-annual audits by the Internal auditors, KPMg 
sri lanka.

a. Policy on external assurance. 
b. relationship with assurance 
providers. 

the CrIb policy on external assurance conforms to relevant national regulations regarding 
internal and external audits of the CrIb Financial statements. both internal and external 
auditors are appointed by the CrIb board.
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DeFInIng MaterIalIty

DeFInIng rePort Content 
the process of defining report content and aspect boundaries is listed below.

Identify
relevant 
aspects.

1. the CrIb management identified material aspects.

set aspect 
boundaries 

2. external entities were grouped into stakeholder groups and aspect boundaries were decided by the CrIb management.
For the purpose of setting aspect boundaries, all external entities were classified and grouped as:

 y regulators (Including Central bank and government)
 y CrIb Members
 y auditors
 y Public (Current and potential customers)
 y business entities (Current and potential customers)
 y suppliers of services (technical services, janitorial services, advertisers, event managers)
 y Industry bodies 

all of the above external entities have been mentioned in the consolidated financial statements of this report.

Prioratise the 
selected aspects 

3. the list of relevant aspects were reviewed for level of impact (high, mid, low) on external stakeholders and 
CrIb employees (Please see table in pages 13 to 14). all aspects that have high impacts were identified and 
mapped onto an ‘Impact grid’ (Page 15).

Validate 

4. to validate the above selected aspects, the CrIb management reviewed the previous CrIb annual report 
taking  into account stakeholder feedback regarding the previous annual report. 
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asPeCts, asPeCt bounDarIes anD asPeCt PrIorItIsatIon

Relevant Aspect 
Aspect Boundary 

Impact (High, Mid, Low)
Internal External Entities / Stakeholders 

CRIB
Employees

Regulators Members Auditors Public Businesses Suppliers
Industry 

bodies
To 

CRIB
To External 

Stakeholders

ECONOMIC 

eConoMIC 

PerForManCe
X X X X X H H

InDIreCt 

eConoMIC 

IMPaCts

X X X X X M M

ENVIRONMENT

energy X l l

Water X l l

LABOR PRACTICES AND DECENT WORK

eMPloyMent X X X X H M

oCCuPatIonal 

HealtH anD 

saFety

X X X H l

traInIng anD 

eDuCatIon
X X X X X H H

DIVersIty 

& eQual 

oPPortunIty

X X M l

eQual 

reMuneratIon 

For WoMen & 

Men

X H l

labor 

PraCtICes 

grIeVanCe 

MeCHanIsMs
X X X X H M



14 CREDIT INFORMATION BUREAU OF SRI LANKA (CRIB)

Defining Materiality Contd.

Relevant Aspect 
Aspect Boundary 

Impact (High, Mid, Low)
Internal External Entities / Stakeholders 

CRIB
Employees

Regulators Members Auditors Public Businesses Suppliers
Industry 

bodies
To 

CRIB
To External 

Stakeholders

SOCIETY

loCal 

CoMMunItIes
X l l

antI-

CorruPtIon
X X X X X X H H

PublIC PolICy X X X H H

CoMPlIanCe X X X X X X X H H

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

CustoMer 

PrIVaCy
X X X X X H H

CoMPlIanCe X X X X X X X H H

CHanges In sCoPe anD asPeCt 
bounDary 
the scope of the current report remains 
the same as the previous report (CrIb 
annual report 2014) and includes all three 
categories of economic, environmental and 
social.

However, aspects reported on in the 2014 
annual report were reviewed as part of the 
validation process. Following this review, 
some aspects reported as high priority 
(water, electricity) were reduced in priority. 
some aspects that were not included in 
the 2014 annual report were deemed high 

priority and have been included in the 
current report. these new aspects are - anti 
corruption, public policy, compliance with 
regulations and regulatory compliance in 
delivering products and services. 
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IMPaCt grID For seleCtIng toPICs 
For DIsCussIon
the aspects that have high impacts on both 
the Crb and external stakeholders were 
mapped onto an ‘Impact grid’. In addition, 
through the validation process, a number 
of other aspects were selected and mapped 
onto the Impact grid. 

restateMent oF InForMatIon 
no information from the CrIb 2014 
annual report has been restated.

H
ig

h  y equal remuneration

Low Medium High

M
ed

iu
m

Lo
w

IM
PA

CT
 O

N
 C

R
IB

IMPACT ON STAKEHOLDERS

 y economic 
performance

 y Customer privacy 
 y training and 

education
 y anti-corruption
 y Public policy
 y Compliance

 y employment 
 y labour practices 

grievance 
mechanisms

 y Indirect economic 
impacts

 y energy
 y Water
 y local 

communities 
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about tHe CrIb
this is where we update you regarding any 

changes to the CrIb’s key corporate information 
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our VIsIon

WHo We are

building a customer friendly reservoir of credit information. 

our ColleCtIVe 
CrusaDe 

 y to collect and collate credit and financial information on borrowers and prospective 
borrowers of lending institutions.  

 y to provide credit information on request, to shareholder lending institutions and 
simultaneously to borrowers to whom such information relate, and to instill credit 
discipline in the financial sector.  

 y to establish a credit-rating system in sri lanka.
 y to undertake credit rating and to sell such credit ratings to any foreign and local 

agencies, or to any person making a request for such ratings. 
 y to undertake research and training projects for shareholder lending institutions.
 y to operate a filing office of secured transactions to register the security interest 

of movables with a view to facilitate the distribution of credit to all sectors of the 
economy and to the informal sector in particular.

 our resPonsIbIlIty  y Provide an efficient and effective credit information service and other value added 
services to the members by using state-of-the-art technology.  

 y enable easy and fast access to credit while minimising non-performing loan levels.
 y Increase the confidence of investors in the banking and finance sector, which is vital 

for the development of the economy and for the well-being of society. 
 y Improve the quality of work-life of employees and develop their skills.
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naMe oF organIsatIon
the Credit Information bureau of sri lanka (CrIb)

loCatIon oF HeaDQuarters
Current address: 
the Whiteaways building, 
no 25, sir baron Jayathilake Mawatha,
Colombo 01  

CrIb ProDuCts & serVICes

Type of  Products Name of the Product

Credit Information report Comprehensive Consumer report

Comprehensive Corporate report

self Inquiry report ireport Consumer

ireport Corporate

ireport online

bulk Data Processing bulk request

secured transactions registry search report/ Finance statements

Services Name of the Service

CrIb services  y training programmes for shareholder institutions 
 y Public awareness programmes on CrIb services 
 y Coordinate  with member institutions for data 

corrections and dispute resolutions on credit 
reports

CountrIes oF oPeratIon: 
CrIb operations are limited to sri lanka.

legal ForM 
the CrIb was established by statute; 
the Credit Information bureau of sri 
lanka act no. 18 of 1990. subsequent 
amendments to the CrIb act were made 
through act no 08 of 1995 and act no 42 of 
2008. 

oWnersHIP oF tHe CrIb 
CRIB share ownership as at December 
31st, 2015 : 

 y  the Monetary board of Central bank of 
sri lanka : 19%

 y  bank of Ceylon : 18.64 %
 y  People’s bank : 18.96 %
 y  national savings bank : 12.18 %
 y  national Development bank PlC:  6.2%
 y  other lending Institutions: 25%

the CrIb has a unique public-private 
ownership structure. the CrIb is owned by 

our VItal statIstICs
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‘member institutions’ who own shares of CrIb. these member institutions comprise 
the Monetary board of  sri lanka, and all lending institutions (public and private), 
registered with the Central bank of sri lanka. 

other lending 
institutions

leasing 
Companies

Finance 
Companies

specialised 
banks

Commercial 
banks

CRIB ownership 

Financial 
sector regulator  

(Monetary board 
of  sri lanka)

Monetary board of  sri lanka 19.30%
Commercial banks 57.99%
leasing establishments 0.44%
specialised banks 16.62%
other Institutions 0.08%
Finance Companies 5.57%

CRIB Ownership

oWnersHIP oF CrIb by tyPe oF 
FInanCIal InstItutIon (as at 
DeCeMber 31, 2015 )
Within the domestic lending sector, CrIb 
shares are distributed among different 
financial institutions including specialised 
banks, commercial banks, finance 
companies, leasing companies and other 

nominated lending institutions. these 
institutions are listed below. 

Commercial Banks

amana bank PlC

axis bank limited

bank of Ceylon

Cargills bank limited

Citi bank n a

Commercial bank of Ceylon PlC

Deutsche bank ag

DFCC bank PlC

Habib bank limited

Hatton national bank PlC

HsbC limited

ICICI bank limited

Indian bank

Indian overseas bank

MCb bank limited

national Development bank PlC

nations trust bank PlC

Pan asia banking Corporation PlC

People's bank

Public bank berhad

sampath bank PlC

seylan bank PlC

standard Chartered bank

state bank of India

union bank of Colombo PlC

Specialised Banks

HDFC bank

lankaputra Development bank limited

national savings bank

regional Development bank

sanasa Development bank PlC

sri lanka savings bank

state Mortgage & Investment bank 
limited

Finance Companies

abans Finance PlC

alliance Finance Company PlC

aMW Capital leasing & Finance PlC

arpico Company Finance PlC

our Vital statistics Contd.
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People's Merchant Finance PlC

richard Peiris Finance limited

sarvodaya Development Finance 
limited 

senkadagala Finance PlC

serandib Finance limited

singer Finance (lanka) PlC

sinhaputra Finance PlC

siyapatha Finance PlC

softlogic Finance PlC

summit Finance PlC

swarnamahal Financial services PlC

the Finance Company PlC

the standard Credit lanka limited

tKs Finance limited

trade Finance & Investments PlC

u b Finance Company limited

Vallibel Finance PlC

Leasing Companies

assetline leasing Company limited

Co-operative  leasing Company limited

Isuru leasing Company limited

lolC Micro Credit limited

sMb leasing PlC

unisons Capital leasing ltd.

asia asset Finance PlC

associate Motor Finance Company PlC

bimputh Finance PlC

braC lanka Finance PlC

Central Finance Company PlC

Chilaw Finance PlC

Citizens Development business Finance PlC

City Finance Corporation limited

Colombo trust Finance PlC

Commercial Credit & Finance PlC

Commercial leasing & Finance PlC

etI Finance limited

Hnb grameen Finance limited

Ideal Finance limited

Kanrich Finance limited

l b Finance PlC

lolC Finance PlC

Melsta regal Finance limited

Mercantile Investments & Finance PlC

Merchant bank of sri lanka & Finance 
PlC

Multi Finance PlC

nation lanka Finance PlC

orient Finance PlC

People's leasing & Finance PlC

Other lending institutions 

Mercantile Merchant bank limited

national Development trust Fund 
(guarantee) limited

sri lanka export Credit Insurance 
Corporation

our vital statistics Contd.
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MarKets serVeD

lending 
Institutions

 y all lending institutions in sri lanka that are 
registered with the Central bank of sri lanka

 y Institutions declared as lending institutions by the 
Minister of Finance of sri lanka 

CrIb
Markets

Individuals 

businesses

sCale oF tHe organIsatIon

total number of employees 26

total number of operations there is only one operational unit in the 
country 

total capitalisation (rs)  25 Mn

Revenue  by Income Type 2015 
Rs. Mn

2014
Rs. Mn

Credit Information report 935.41 903.40

self Inquiry report 2.15 2.17

bulk request 1.40 -

Data Corrections 0.66 0.46

total 939.62 906.03

eMPloyee ProFIle

Total contract employees 2

Male 1

Female 1

Total permanent employees  24

Male 16

Female 8

Permanent employees by 
employment type and gender

Managerial 6

Male 4

Female 2

Executive 6

Male 5

Female 1

Non Executive 12

Male 7

Female 5

a substantial portion of the organisation’s 
work is performed by CrIb employees 
and not by outsourced or self employed 
persons. there are no variations in 
employee numbers due to seasonal or other 
factors.  CrIb employees are not covered by 
collective bargaining agreements.
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our vital statistics Contd.

tHe CrIb suPPly CHaIn

Data

CrIb MeMber

Credit Facility  
Details

borrowers Details

guarantor Details

Details on Cheque 
returns

Details on Movable 
securities

CrIb

Collect,Collate and 
synthesise

ProDuCts

Member 
Institutions

Credit reports

search report/ 
Finance statements

general 
Public

self Inquiry reports 
(ireports)

InPuts to tHe CrIb suPPly CHaIn
1. Member institutions provide financial data on credit provided by them to individuals, businesses and other organisations.
2. Member institutions provide data on moveable securities registered in the secured transactions register.



23 CreDIt InForMatIon bureau oF srI lanKa (CrIb)

Primary inputs to the CrIb supply chain 
are credit and credit related data provided 
by lending  institutions.  Input data 
includes data relating to the following 
credit facility types. 

 y  Credit cards 
 y  loans
 y  leasing
 y  Hire purchases
 y  letters of credit
 y  over drafts
 y  advances against import bill 

retirements
 y  bank guarantees
 y  bills discounting
 y  Hypothecation
 y  Consumer durables
 y  Factoring
 y  Details of dishonoured cheques (cheque 

returns) due to insufficient funds.

CrIb Internal ProCess
the CrIb’s Credit Information 
Management system (CrIMs) is designed 
to collect, collate and synthesise the input 
data, to generate credit information 
reports. these reports are provided on 
request of individuals or institutions 
specified in the CrIb act.

CrIb outPuts
 y  Credit information to member lending 

institutions on individual and corporate 
borrowers and potential borrowers.

 y  Credit reports for individuals and 
corporate. ( self inquiry credit reports – 
ireports)

 y  Information on movable assets pledged 
as security with lending institutions.

 y  Invoices
Other CRIB services are:

 y  Conduct training programmes for 
member institutions.

 y  Conduct public awareness programmes 
regarding CrIb services.

 y  Coordinate with the member 
institutions to accommodate data 
corrections and the customer dispute 
resolution.

PreCautIonary aPProaCH
the CrIb has little or no impacts on the 
environment through its normal business 
operations due to its small size and 
service based nature of business. However, 
the CrIb considers environmental 
responsibility as a national obligation 
and has disclosed relevant environmental 
impacts under the chapter titled 
environmental responsibility.

subsCrIPtIon to eXternal 
CHarters 
the CrIb engages with external multilateral 
agencies and other governing bodies 
relating to the credit reporting industry.

 y  International Finance Corporation 
(IFC): the CrIb maintains regular 
communications with the International 
Finance Corporation (IFC) for the 
development of the CrIb and the 
domestic lending industry.

 y  Asia- Pacific Consumer Credit 
Information Services (APCCIS): the 
CrIb has been involved with aPCCIs 
for the last 09 years and received full 
membership in 2015.

aPCCIs is a non-profit, advocacy group. 
which promotes greater collaboration 
between credit reporting agencies in the 
asia Pacific region and is the interactive 
and knowledge sharing platform for credit 
bureaus. the mission of aPCCIs is to 
educate and update the public about the 
use of consumer credit information for 
lending decisions. aPCCIs is owned and 
managed by the business Information 
Industry association (bIIa). bIIa is a global 
trade organisation that deals with the 
information content industry.

 y  The World Bank Ease of Doing 
Business Index: the CrIb is a key 
contributor to the Doing business (Db) 
survey conducted by the World bank 
annually. the CrIb provides regular 
updates for the getting Credit Index, 
which has a major impact on overall 
country ranking of the ease of Doing 
business index.

 y  World Consumer Credit Reporting 
Conference (WCCRC): this is the 
largest gathering of the credit 
reporting industry in the world. 
WCCrC promotes knowledge sharing 
and mutual collaboration among 
professionals in the industry. the 
conferences help participating CrIb 
staff members to enhance their 
knowledge of the industry and to 
establish international networks with 
key stakeholders and professionals in 
the industry.

MeMbersHIP In assoCIatIons 
employers Federation of Ceylon (eFC)
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etHICs anD 
goVernanCe

as sri lanka’s only credit information provider, 
good governance is vital for credibility and 
is a key stakeholder expectation.  therefore, 
this year, we have expanded our governance 

disclosures. 
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Mr.a. a. M. tHassIM
Director, Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka
Director Bank Supervision Department  of Central Bank of Sri Lanka

Mr. thassim has been in the service of the Central bank of sri lanka (Cbsl) for over 23 years 
and is currently the Director of the bank supervision Department, which is responsible for 
the regulation and supervision of the banking sector in the country.  Prior to this appointment 
he served a short period as Director of Communications and also served as the Director of 
International operations and was responsible for the management of foreign reserves of 
the country and managing the exchange rate. Mr. thassim has also gained experience and 

knowledge in the field of payment systems and was a Director of lanka Clear (Pvt) ltd., which is presently the national clearing house and 
was involved in the implementation of the Cheque Imaging and truncation system.  

Mr. thassim is an associate member of the Chartered Institute of Management accountants uK and possesses a Masters in business 
administration from the Postgraduate Institute of Management, university of sri Jayewardenepura.  He has also gained a Diploma 
in Computer systems Design from nIbM and has completed an executive programme on leaders in Development from the John F. 
Kennedy school of government, Harvard university, usa and gold reserves Management from Hass school of business, university of 
California, berkeley, usa. 

Mr P. saMarasIrI 
Chairman of the Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka 
Deputy Governor of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka

Mr samarasiri  was appointed Chairman of the CrIb from January 1, 2016. He is currently 
a Deputy governor of the Central bank of sri lanka. Prior to the appointment  as Deputy 
governor, he served in many senior positions, such as assistant governor, secretary to the 
Monetary board, Compliance officer and Director of bank supervision in the Central bank.  He 
also holds the post of Chairman of the Institute of bankers of sri lanka and is a member of the 
Insurance board of sri lanka and the securities and exchange Commission of sri lanka.

Mr. samarasiri holds a ba Degree (Hons.) in economics from university of Colombo and an 
Ma in economics from the university of Kansas, usa, and counts 33 years of experience in the Central bank in areas of statistics, economic 
policies, regulation and supervision of banks and non-bank financial institutions, financial system stability, corporate governance, 
currency management, foreign exchange policies, financial intelligence and regional development. 

Mr. samarasiri has authored three books  “uqo,a .kqfokq, nexl= iy wd¾Ólh”,   “uQ,sl wd¾Ól úoHd uQ,O¾u ú.%yh” iy “wd¾Ól úoHd uQ,O¾u iy 

m%;sm;a;s” published by the Central bank.  He has also published several articles on economic and financial topics in various publications and 
news papers. 

boarD oF DIreCtors
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Mr. D. M. gunaseKera
Director, Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka
General Manager of Bank of Ceylon

Mr. gunasekera also serves as a non-executive nominee Director on the boards of boC travels 
(Private) ltd, boC Property Development & Management (Private) limited, boC Management 
& support services (Private) limited, bank of Ceylon (uK) limited, Ceybank Holiday Homes 
(Private) limited, Ceybank asset Management limited, Hotels Colombo (1963) limited, Mireka 
Homes (Pvt) ltd., Mireka Capital land (Pvt) ltd, the Institute of bankers of sri lanka, the 
lanka Financial services (bureau) limited, lanka Clear (Private) limited, the sri lanka banks’ 
association (guarantee) ltd., and the Financial ombudsman sri lanka (guarantee) ltd. He 

is also a Committee Member of the asia-Pacific rural agricultural Credit association (aPraCa) and an associate Member of the Institute of 
bankers of sri lanka.

Mr. gunasekera is a career banker with over 32 years of diversified banking experience covering corporate and offshore banking, sales and 
channel management, international banking operations and extensive experience in credit management and administration. Prior to his 
appointment as Chief executive of the bank of Ceylon, he held a number of key corporate management positions in these areas. He was 
appointed to the board of the Credit Information bureau in January 2013.

Mr gunasekara graduated from the university of Colombo, sri lanka, with a special Degree in Public Finance and taxation in 1981. additional 
academic qualifications include a Corporate Management programme for sri lanka (lKCM2 aots) in Japan and an advanced Management 
Programme conducted by Wharton university of Pennsylvania, usa. 

Mr. n. VasantHa KuMar
Director, Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka
Chief Executive Officer/General Manager of People’s Bank

Mr Kumar also serves on the boards of People’s leasing & Finance Plc, People’s leasing Property 
Development ltd, People’s leasing Havelock Properties limited, People’s travels (Pvt) ltd, the 
national Payment Council, the lanka Financial services bureau, the Financial ombudsman sri 
lanka (guarantee) ltd., the sri lanka banks’ association (guarantee) limited, and is a Member 
of the governing board of the Institute of bankers of sri lanka. He is a past President of the 
association of Primary Dealers and of the sri lanka Forex association.

Mr Kumar has a Master’s Degree in business administration. Mr Kumar is a highly experienced banker with 32 years in treasury Management. 
He joined People’s bank in March 2001, and has served in the capacity of Ceo/general Manager of People’s bank since 2011. Prior to this he 
served as treasurer at anZ grindlays bank.

board of Directors Contd.
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Mr. DIlsHan roDrIgo
Director, Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka
Chief Operating Officer of Hatton National Bank PLC

Mr rodrigo holds additional director positions at acuity securities ltd, acuity Partners (Pvt) ltd, 
Hnb assurance PlC, guardian acuity asset Management ltd, sithma Development (Pvt) ltd and 
Hnb general Insurance ltd.

He was elected Chairman for two years by the asian banker’s Policy advocacy Committee, a forum for 
advancing the cause of banking and finance in the region and promoting regional co-operation, and is 
a former President of the aCCa sri lanka Division.

He has presented technical papers in various forums locally and overseas on strategy, business transformation and risk management and served 
as a lecturer and examiner for strategic management for the university of Wales affiliated Mba programme in sri lanka and as a guest lecturer 
at the Postgraduate Institute of Management. He was also a Director of the Certification Programme, at the sri lanka Institute of Directors.

Mr rodrigo is a senior banker with extensive experience in retail banking, finance, institutional banking and risk management in leading local 
and foreign commercial banks operating in sri lanka.

Mr rodrigo has an Mba from the Cranfield university of uK and is an FCMa, uK, and FCCa, uK.

Mr. K. s. banDaranayaKe
Director, Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka
Deputy General Manager, Finance & Administration, People’s Leasing & Finance PLC

Mr. bandaranayake is an associate of the Institute of Chartered accountants of sri lanka since 1993, a 
member of the Institute of Certified Management accountants (CMa) of australia, and a Fellow of the 
society of Certified Management accountants (CMa) of sri lanka.

He is a finalist of the Chartered Institute of Management accountants (CIMa), uK and possesses 
five years’ experience at ernst & young Chartered accountants. He has over 22 years of post-
qualifying experience at a very senior level in the finance sector. He joined People’s leasing & 

Finance PlC in July 2007. He is a former Vice President of the asian Financial services association (aFsa and a former Chairman of the leasing 
association of sri lanka. He also served as a Committee Member of the Ceylon Chamber of Commerce and as a Council Member of the sri lanka 
Institute of Credit Management. 
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Mr. nalIn WIJeKoon
Director, Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka
Director/CEO of Softlogic Finance PLC

Mr. Wijekoon was appointed as Ceo of softlogic Finance PlC in February 2013. Prior to this he 
was the Deputy Ceo of the Company. He was appointed a Director of the Credit Information 
bureau in 2015.

He was the Chairman of the Finance Houses association of sri lanka (FHa) for years 2013/14 
and 2014/15. He is a Fellow Member of the Institute of Chartered accountants of sri lanka, a 
Fellow Member of the Chartered Institute of Management accountants, uK, and a Finalist of the 

Institute of bankers (sri lanka).

Mr. Wijekoon counts more than 36 years of experience in the Financial sector. He commenced his career at Peoples bank and served as Finance 
officer from 1978 to 1990 before joining KMPg Ford rhodes thornton & Co., as branch Manager in Kandy, in 1990. He served as a Project officer 
at DFCC bank in 1992 and joined Vanik Incorporation ltd as assistant Vice President, Finance in 1994 and served in that capacity until 2003.

Mr. Wijekoon has undergone numerous training programmes in sri lanka and overseas, including training at Harvard university, boston, usa. 

Mr. a. r. FernanDo
Director, Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka
Chief Executive Officer of DFCC Bank PLC

Mr Fernando also holds the post of Chairman at DFCC bank subsidiaries - DFCC Consulting (Pvt) 
limited, lanka Industrial estates limited and synapsys limited - and the joint venture company 
of DFCC bank, acuity Partners (Pvt) limited. In addition, he is a director of lanka Ventures 
limited. He is also a member of the board of Directors of the association of Development 
Financing Institutions in asia and the Pacific (aDFIaP). He is former Director of DFCC Vardhana 
bank PlC.

Mr Fernando is a career banker and has 30 years experience in banking and financial services. He was appointed to the board of DFCC bank in 
october 2013. Prior to joining DFCC bank in august 2012, he was the asia Pacific, regional Head of Change and Delivery (commercial banking, 
trade and supply chain) of HsbC, Hong Kong.

Mr Fernando has a b.sc. engineering Degree from the university of southern Illinois, usa and an M.sc. in Management from Clemson university, 
south Carolina, usa. He is also an associate of the Institute of Financial studies (Chartered Institute of bankers), uK. 

board of Directors Contd.
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P. l. D. n. seneVIratne
Director, Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka
Director / Chief Executive Officer of Pan Asia Banking Corporation PLC

Mr. Dimantha seneviratne is the Director/Chief executive officer of Pan asia banking 
Corporation PlC.  He counts more than 25 years of banking of which, 15 years  with the 
HsbC group including several senior overseas postings covering thailand, bangladesh and 
saudi arabia. He has extensive exposure in Corporate banking, retail banking and Wealth 
Management, Credit risk Management, operations and Market risk, Internal Control, 
Investment banking and Finance. His last three postings with HsbC group were as Chief risk 
officer, sri lanka / Maldives, bangladesh and thailand, where he was responsible for credit 

growth, strategy and governance in those geographies as a member of the country leadership team.

Mr. seneviratne holds a Mba from the Postgraduate Institute of Management, university of sri Jayawardenapura, and bsc, from the same 
university. He is a Fellow of the Institute of bankers, sri lanka and a Post graduate Diploma Holder in Computer system Design from the nIbM. 
Mr. seneviratne is a Past President of the association of Professional bankers (aPb) sri lanka. He is also a Director at lanka Clear Pvt ltd. 

K a JanaKa laKMal
Acting General Manager
Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka

Mr. Janaka lakmal joined the management team of CrIb in 2006 as assistant general Manager. 
He was appointed as Deputy general Manager in 2009 and currently holds the post of acting 
general Manager since May 2016. 

He as project lead to the CrIb Modernisation Project spearheaded the business reengineering and 
technology transformation process under 5 year Development Initiative of the bureau during 2006 
-2010. He counts more than 20 years of experience in the financial and It services industries.  

In addition to his core profile he headed the secured transactions (st) development project (2010 – 2011) where the bureau has developed and 
implemented first ever online st register established by any operating credit bureau in the world. He represented CrIb in several international 
conferences in consumer credit reporting and had been invited to show case the country’s achievements in credit reporting and financial 
inclusion and on development of secured transactions systems in several locally organised forums & the World bank Financial Infrastructure 
Conferences in brazil, turkey and Malaysia. He is by profession an engineer specialised in It systems integration and was employed at John 
Keells and bartleet groups prior to joining CrIb.

Mr lakmal holds the Masters Degree (Honors) in Computer science from georgian technical university, tbilisi, georgia and Masters Degree in 
business administration from university of Colombo, sri lanka. 



30 CREDIT INFORMATION BUREAU OF SRI LANKA (CRIB)

Mr. b D W ananDa sIlVa
(Retired w.e.f. from Jan. 2016)
Chairman of the Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka
Deputy Governor of the Central Bank of Sri Lanka

Mr. silva serves as the Chairman of the Institute of bankers of sri lanka and is a Director 
of the securities and exchange Commission, the Insurance board of sri lanka, the “api 
Venuven api” Fund and is a Member of the Cabinet appointed Procurement Committee of the 
Ceylon Petroleum Corporation and the Quality assurance board of the Institute of Chartered 
accountants of sri lanka. He is also a Director of West Coast Power (Pvt.) ltd.

Mr. silva has been with the Central bank for 31 years and has worked in the Central bank’s Development Finance Department, economic 
research Department and bank supervision Department and has acquired wide experience in the areas of monetary policy, bank supervision, 
financial system stability, exchange rate policy, external trade and balance of payments. He holds a b.sc. First Class Degree from the university 
of Jaffna and an M.a from university of Iowa, u.s.a. and an M.sc. Degree from the university of Illinois, usa. He has been a visiting lecturer at 
the university of Colombo and a resource person for several high level courses conducted by the Central bank.

Mr. gaMInI Karunaratne
(Retired w.e.f. from May 2016)
Director (Executive)/ General Manager
Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka

Mr. gamini Karunaratne is the Director/ general Manager of the Credit Information bureau 
of sri lanka. He is a retired senior banker with 40 years experience in commercial banking. at 
the time of retirement, he held the post of senior Deputy general Manager, International and 
Investment banking, at the Hatton national bank (Hnb). During his career at Hnb he served on 
the boards of Hnb  securities ltd and Hnb stock brokers ltd. after his retirement from Hnb he 
was appointed a Director of DFCC bank. He also served as a Director of Ceylinco savings bank. 

He is a founder member and a past president of the sri lanka Forex association. He was the Chairman of lunar technologies (Pvt) ltd and a 
Director of Minnerva Financials ltd. He is also a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Management uK and a past President of its branch in sri 
lanka. He joined the Credit Information bureau in June 2009.

boarD oF DIreCtors  (retIreD)
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Mrs. yVette FernanDo
(Retired w.e.f. from Nov. 2015)
Director Bank Supervision Department Central Bank of Sri Lanka

Mrs. yvette Fernando possesses over 25 years of experience in operational and policy matters 
relating to implementing regulatory and supervisory framework for banks.  she joined the Central 
bank of sri lanka in 1990 and worked in the departments of banking Development and bank 
supervision. she was appointed as the Director of bank supervision in august 2009 and was 
responsible for overall regulation and supervision of licensed banks in sri lanka and administering 
the Deposit Insurance scheme operated by the Central bank.
  

Mrs Fernando was appointed as the Controller of exchange since september 2015 to head the exchange Control Department, which is assigned 
with the task of discharging the statutory responsibilities under the exchange Control act.

Mrs Fernando has participated in several local and international training programmes, seminars and other forums to enhance and update the 
knowledge on different aspects of bank supervision and regulation, and general banking operations.  she has been a resource person in several 
training programmes and panel discussions on work related subjects, both local and overseas.

Mrs. Fernando holds a b Com (special) Degree from the university of sri Jayewardenepura, sri lanka.

Mr. PrataPKuMar De sIlVa
(Retired w.e.f. from May. 2015)
Senior Advisor Alliance Finance PLC

Mr. De silva is a Fellow of the Institute of Credit  Management, sri lanka and a Fellow 
of the Institute of Credit  Management, england. He is the first sri lankan to be honoured 
as a Fellow of the Institute of Credit Management england. He is  the honourary Consul of 
the republic of Peru in sri lanka and is a senior advisor for alliance Finance Co. PlC. He is 
a director of several other Companies and is an advisory Councillor of the Committee of the 
Finance Houses association of sri lanka.  
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InDraJIt WICKraMasIngHe
(Retired w.e.f. from Aug. 2015)
Executive Director/ Chief Executive Officer of Union Bank

Mr. Indrajit Wickramasinghe is the Director/Chief executive officer of union bank of Colombo 
PlC . He counts for over 26 years of Management experience having worked in both the financial 
and consumer sectors in both local and multinational companies. He holds an Mba from the 
university of sri Jayewardenepura, a Fellow of the Chartered Institute of Marketing uK, a 
Member of the association of the Professional bankers and a member of the oxford business 
alumni, university of oxford. 

Prior to his appointment as Director/Ceo of union bank he served as the Chief operating officer of nDb bank where he was responsible for 
all business areas including retail banking, Corporate banking, sMe banking and Project Finance. Prior to that he held positions as a Vice 
President looking after functions such as Hr, Marketing and seven years as Vice President heading retail banking. 

Mr. Wickramasinghe was also a non executive Director of eagle Insurance/aviva nDb Insurance, nDb Capital Holdings PlC, nDb securities 
(Pvt) ltd, Development Holdings (Pvt) ltd . He currently serves as a non executive Director of the national asset Management ltd and ub 
Finance Company ltd.

Ms. W a nalanI
(Retired w.e.f. from Jan. 2015)
Chairperson, National Saving Bank

Ms. nalani graduated from the university of Colombo, sri lanka, and holds a special degree in 
economics and is a Fellow of the Institute of bankers of sri lanka.

she was a career banker with over 37 years experience at the bank of Ceylon in executive grades 
and reached the highest position of general Manager/Ceo of the bank. she was the Chairperson 
of national savings bank and its subsidiary nsb Fund Management Co., from June 2013.

Ms nalani had been a board Director of several companies of the bank of Ceylon group including Merchant bank of sri lanka Plc, MCsl 
Financial services ltd, boC travels (Pvt) ltd, Hotels Colombo (1963) ltd, Ceybank asset Management ltd, and Ceybank Holiday Homes ltd. she 
was a Director at the regional Development bank, sri lankan airlines ltd, lanka Clear ltd, and the Institute of bankers of sri lanka. she was a 
former President of the association of Professional bankers of sri lanka (2011/2012).

Ms nalani is a co-winner of the Zonta award for excellence, in the banking category in 2009. she was presented the award ‘Career role Model 
Woman of the year 2012/2013’ by Women in Management.

board of Directors (retired) Contd.
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Mr. roHItHa ganegoDa
(Retired w.e.f. from Feb. 2015)
Chief Information Officer of Nations Trust Bank

Mr. rohitha ganegoda joined the management team of nations trust bank in 2002. He was 
appointed as the bank’s Chief operating officer in January of 2009. Prior to joining nations trust 
bank he has served at Fujitsu semiconductor usa and national Development bank in sri lanka. 
He holds a bsc in computer science from the university of texas at austin, usa and a Mba in 
finance from the southern Illinois university at Carbondale, usa. He also holds a Diploma in 
Computer systems design from the national Institute of business Management, Colombo.

Ms. s.H. gunaWarDena
(Retired w.e.f. from Jan. 2016)
Director Bank Supervision, Central Bank of Sri Lanka

Ms. s. H. gunawardena has a First Class Honours b.a. Degree (economic special), from the university of 
Colombo and a M.Phil. Degree in economics, from the university of Cambridge, uK.

Ms. gunawardena has nearly 30 years experience in the Central bank of sri lanka with exposure 
to both operational and policy related functions in seven departments. she has participated 
in several local and international training programmes, seminars and conferences relating to 
central banking, bank supervision, currency management etc...

Ms. gunawardena has been a resource person in several training programmes on related subjects at the Centre for banking studies of the 
Central bank, the Institute of bankers sri lanka, various licensed banks and other financial institutions.
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staFF

MS. D. I. A. JAYASINGHE 
Chief Manager - Accounts & Administration

MR. D. M. S. I. DISSANAYAKE 
Assistant Manager -Operations

MR. U. L. WEERASINGHE 
Senior Exeutive - Business System Development

MRS. R. M. S. RATHNAYAKE 
Chief Manager - Operations

MR. K. D. S. WANIGASOORIYA 
Assistant Manager -Customer Services

MRS. Y. L. D. K. GUNATILAKE 
Senior Executive-Marketing &  Product Promotion

MRS. P. T. PERERA 
Legal Advisor to The Board of Directors

MRS. S. DE. S. GAMAGE 
Legal Officer

MR. T. M. RAJASEKARA 
Assistant Manager - Business System Development



35 CreDIt InForMatIon bureau oF srI lanKa (CrIb)

MR. E. A. S. U. PREMAKUMARA
Executive - Operations

MR. M. D. S. N. GUNARATHNE 
Executive - Operations

MR. A. B.  DASSANAYAKE 
Senior Officer -Business System Development

MR. J. S. WEERESINGHE 
Executive - System Administration

MS. A.P. HAMID 
Confidential Secretary

MR. S. S. JANSEN 
Senior Accounts Officer

MR. H.V. S. M. DE SILVA 
Accounts Officer

MR. D. D. VITHANAARACHCHI 
Executive - Administration

MRS. W.  A. L. H. D. WELIWITA 
Relationship Officer
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staff Contd.

MS . V.  THIVYA 
Relationship Officer - Customer Services

MRS. T. G. S. KAVINDIKA 
Receptionist Cum Typist

MR. B. K. WIJENAYAKE 
Relationship Officer

MR. K. K. D.W. GUNAWARDHANA 
Relationship Officer - Customer Services

MR. M. M. M. IKRAM 
Office Assistant

MR. K. VAGEESAN 
Relationship Officer - Customer Services

MRS. N. N. BOPAKADAGE 
Receptionist
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as a long standing and successful public-
private partnerships, the CrIb is governed 
by not only a framework of regulations 
but also a strong organisational ethic that 
values and endorses the service culture. 

being an entity established by statute, 
CrIb functions are primarily regulated 
by the CrIb act (Credit Information 
bureau of sri lanka act, no.18 of 1990) 
as amended by (amendment) act, no.8 of 
1995 and (amendment act, no.42 of 2008).  
the daily operations of the CrIb are also 
governed by the CrIb operational Manual 
that apply to all employees. the act and 
Manual provide a general outline of the 
standards of professional and ethical 
conduct expected of employees. these 
apply to general conduct and competence, 
confidentiality and misuse of material, 
confidential information and managing 
conflicts of interest. 

the CrIb has zero tolerance for bribery, 
including giving or receiving bribes and 
making or facilitation unethical payments.

CrIb CorPorate etHIC

CoMPlIanCe WItH regulatIons
the CrIb complies with a number of national regulations in its daily operations. the 
CrIb did not face any fines, penalties or non monetary sanctions for non compliance 
or violation of any regulations during the financial year under review in conducting its 
operations and in the delivery of its products and services.

Regulation
Compliance 

status 

Credit Information bureau of sri lanka act no.18 of 1990 (as 
amended) 

Fully compliant

secured transactions act no.49 of 2009 Fully compliant

shop and office employees (regulation of employment & 
remuneration) act no.19 of 1954 (as amended)

Fully compliant

employees’ Provident Fund act no.15 of 1958 (as amended) Fully compliant

employees’ trust Fund act no.46 of 1980 (as amended) Fully compliant

Inland revenue act no. 10 of 2006 (as amended) Fully compliant

stamp Duty (special Provisions) act no.12 of 2006 (as amended) Fully compliant

electronic transactions act no.19 of 2006 Fully compliant
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CrIb goVernanCe

CrIb goVernanCe struCture
as per statute, the administration and management of the affairs of the CrIb is vested in the board of Directors. the board is supported 
in its decision making by 3 board subcommittees  –  the audit Committee, the technical Committee and the Human resource & 
remuneration Committee. In addition, the CrIb has 4 Management Committees  that review operations, corporate management, It and 
investments

CRIB Governance Structure

board of Directors

operations
Div.

operations 
review Com.

Corporate 
Mgt Com.

It  review 
Com.

accounts/
admin Div.

Internal 
audit (KPMg)

external 
(e&y)

It 
Consultant

Investment
Com.

It 
Div.

legal
Div.

general Manger

Corporate Management

Management Committee

 audit technical Hr & remuneration

eXeCutIVe-leVel PosItIons For eConoMIC, enVIronMental anD soCIal toPICs
all three board committees have an economic sustainability focus, where all three contribute towards the financial sustainability of 
the CrIb and on improving economic impacts. the remuneration Committee and technical Committee also have a strong social focus 
through human resources and customer protection aspects.

ProCesses For ConsultatIon betWeen staKeHolDers anD tHe boarD
CrIb shareholders, who are also CrIb customers, are represented in the CrIb board and board meetings are held monthly. there is no 
mechanism for the general public to contact the CrIb board directly, but the CrIb has made all contact information publicly available 
and all CrIb management, including the general Manager can be contacted directly by a member of the public.



39 CreDIt InForMatIon bureau oF srI lanKa (CrIb)

boarD CoMPosItIon
as directed by statute, the board of Directors of CrIb comprises ten (10) Directors out of which nine (09) are non-executive Directors. 
the members of the board possess the required expertise, skill and experience to effectively manage and direct the bureau in order to 
maintain highest standards of good governance and attain the organisational goals. they are persons with vision, leadership qualities, 
proven competence and integrity. the individual profiles of the members of the board are given in pages 25 to 33 of this report.

Chairman
a Deputy governor of the Central bank nominated by the Monetary board  

a second representative 
from the Central bank

the general Manager
appointed by the board

Public sector
 y a  senior officer of the 

bank of Ceylon nominated 
by the board of Directors 
of bank of Ceylon 

 y a senior officer of the 
People’s bank nominated 
by the board of Directors 
of People’s bank

 y a person nominated  by 
the Monetary board from 
among the directors of 
licensed specialised banks

Private sector
 y two persons elected by 

shareholding licensed 
commercial banks, other 
than the bank of Ceylon 
and the People’s bank 

 y one person elected from 
among the shareholding 
finance companies

 y a person elected by the 
shareholding leasing 
companies 

noMInatIon to tHe boarD anD boarD CoMMIttees
the Chairperson of the board is always a Deputy governor of the Central bank nominated by the Monetary board. one other senior 
officer of the Central bank, also nominated by the Monetary board is appointed to the board. the two main state banks i.e. the bank 
of Ceylon and the People’s bank are entitled to nominate one Director each to the board. the shareholding licensed commercial banks 
are entitled to elect and nominate two persons to the board, whilst the shareholding finance companies and the shareholding leasing 
establishments have the right to elect and nominate one Director each to the board. one person representing the licensed specialised 
banks, nominated by the Monetary board, is also appointed to the board and the general Manager of CrIb being the ex-officio member 
to the board completes the board of Directors of CrIb. every Director (except the Chairperson and the general Manager) shall hold 
office for a term of three (03) years and are eligible for re-nomination or re-election, as the case may be.    
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WHetHer tHe CHaIrMan Is also an eXeCutIVe oFFICer 
the Chairman is an Independent, non executive appointment. 

boarD balanCe anD InDePenDenCe
the roles of Chairman and general Manager are distinct and separate, with a clear 
division of responsibilities.

ManagIng ConFlICts oF Interest
If a Director of CrIb has a conflict of interest in a matter to be considered by the 
board, such matters are disclosed and discussed at the board meetings. Directors with 
substantial interests abstain from voting on any board resolution and their votes are not 
counted in the quorum for the relevant agenda item at the board meeting.

role oF tHe boarD
the board strives to ensure that the management of CrIb maintains an effective system 
of internal controls that provides assurance on efficient operations and compliance with 
applicable laws and regulations.

CRIB Board responsibilities 
 y  setting strategies, direction and 

establishing objectives for the 
management

 y  Monitoring performance against 
objectives whilst ensuring adequate 
internal controls with the highest ethical 
standards

 y  appointing the general Manager and 
determining the remuneration of the 
management and staff

 y  Declaring Dividends
 y  reporting to shareholders    
 y  Maintaining the bureau Fund and the 

reserves in a healthy manner

Topics reserved for approval by the Board  
 y  CrIb’s strategy
 y  Major changes to the management 

structure
 y  annual budgets
 y  Investments made by CrIb
 y  staff appointments and remuneration/

welfare packages 
 y  other matters specifically reserved for 

approval of the board under law and 
regulation.

staKeHolDer ConsultatIons
CrIb board members are also shareholders 
and customers of the CrIb, representing 
the financial sector regulator and financial 
institutions in the country. therefore, 
the CrIb board composition integrates 
stakeholder inputs into CrIb decision 
making.

FreQuenCy oF boarD reVIeWs oF 
rIsKs, anD oPPortunItIes.
board meetings are held monthly and 
all relevant topics are subject to board 
discussion.

CrIb governance Contd.
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Board meetings in 2015
the board had 13 meetings during the period under review and the attendance of each Director at board Meetings is given in the table 
below. In compliance with the accepted best practices, board Papers are circulated 4-5 days prior to a meeting, giving the board members 
adequate time to scrutinise the same and be prepared for the meetings.

Attendance at Board meetings 2015

Name of Member
Board Meetings

No. of Meetings Held 
during Tenure of  Office

No. of Meetings 
Attended

Percentage of
Attendance

Mr. b. D. W. ananda silva 13 13 100%

Mrs. t. M. y. P. Fernando 11 11 100%

Ms. s. H. gunawardena 01 01 100%

Mr. D. M. gunasekara
(Alternate Director – Mr. S. M. S. C. Jayasuriya)

13 09 69.23%

Mr. n. Vasantha Kumar
(Alternate Director – Mr. K. B. Rajapakse)

13 10 76.92%

Mr. I. a. Wickremasinghe 
(Alternate Director – Mr. D. P. N. Rodrigo)

07 07 100%

Mr. D. P. n. rodrigo 06 06 100%

Mr. sanjeewa bandaranayaka 13 07 53.84%

Mr. a. r. g. ganegoda
(Alternate Director – Mr. Nilanth De Silva)

13 10 76.92%

Mr. J. e. P. a. De silva 
(Alternate Director – Mr. Nalin Wijekoon)

03 02 66.67%

Mr. nalin Wijekoon 10 07 70%

Mr. arjun Fernando 10 06 60%

Mr. gamini P. Karunaratne 13 13 100%



42 CREDIT INFORMATION BUREAU OF SRI LANKA (CRIB)

role oF boarD CoMMIttees
board Committees are appointed by the board of Directors in accordance with the generally accepted standards and best practices of 
Corporate governance. the CrIb has three (03) board Committees to date.

Attendance at Board Audit Committee meetings 2015

Name of Member

Audit Committee Meetings

No. of Meetings Held 
during Tenure of  Office

No. of Meetings 
Attended

Percentage of
Attendance

Mrs. t. M. y. P. Fernando 3 2 100%

Mr. a. r. g. ganegoda 3 3 100%

Mr. sanjeewa bandaranayaka 3 3 100%

Attendance at Board Technical Committee meetings 2015

Name of Member

Technical Committee Meetings

No. of Meetings Held 
during Tenure of  Office

No. of Meetings 
Attended

Percentage of
Attendance

Mrs. t. M. y. P. Fernando 3 3 100%

Mr. I. a. Wickremasinghe 2 1 50%

Mr. a. r. g. ganegoda 3 3 100%

Mr. D. P. n rodrigo 1 1 100%

Attendance at Board Remuneration Committee meetings 2015

Name of Member

Remuneration Committee Meetings

No. of Meetings Held 
during Tenure of Office

No. of Meetings 
Attended

Percentage of
Attendance

Mr. n. Vasantha Kumar 2 2 100%

Mr. sanjeewa bandaranayaka 2 2 100%

CrIb governance Contd.
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ManageMent CoMMIttees
the following Management Committees have been established to further support the board and the general Manager.

Management Committee Responsibility Area of focus 

Corporate Management 
Committee (CMC)

 y oversee that the day-today operations of the bureau 
are conducted in a manner which is consistent 
with the strategic plans, business plans and budgets 
approved by the board.

 y strategic Planning
 y risk Management
 y Human resources
 y Communications Policy
 y Financial reporting 

operational review 
Committee (orC)

 y review operations of the Credit Information 
Management system (CrIMs), the secured 
transaction registry (str) and general 
administration of the bureau.

 y Make appropriate recommendations to the gM and 
the board.

 y set annual operational targets and goals.
 y Perform periodic review of progress of set 

targets.

ICt review Committee 
(ICtrC)

 y Provide monthly review reports on It operations 
to the orC for inclusion in the monthly Progress of 
operations report submitted to the board.

 y Monitor information security policies and practices 
on an on-going basis.

 y overlook all non-ICt related technical aspects of 
CrIb operations and assist the orC in handling 
such operations.

 y set ICt based technology strategy.
 y review performance of all ICt operations 

of the CrIb.

Investment Committee (IC)
the committee meets 
as and when funds are 
available for investment, 
prior to maturity.

 y Formulate and oversee the investment policies and 
management of investments.

 y Prudent and effective investments of CrIb 
funds.
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HIgHest PosItIon tHat ForMally 
reVIeWs anD aPProVes tHe 
sustaInabIlIty rePort 

 y the general Manager
 y the Deputy general Manager
 y the Chief Financial officer
 y the legal officer
 y other divisional heads

ProCess For CoMMunICatIng 
CrItICal ConCerns to tHe HIgHest 
goVernanCe boDy.

 y board papers
 y Monthly board meetings

nature anD total nuMber oF 
CrItICal ConCerns CoMMunICateD 
to tHe HIgHest goVernanCe boDy 
In tHe rePortIng PerIoD.

 y  the need to upgrade the existing It 
system.

 y  sourcing a new location for the CrIb 
office to accommodate future growth.

 y  Draft str act was presented to the 
board.

ProCess For DeterMInIng 
reMuneratIon
the remuneration Committee decides 
on remuneration of all employees. salary 
scales have been set and approved by the 
board for different employee grades.

CrIb governance Contd.

antI CorruPtIon 
the CrIb has been established as a statutory body to operate as a service organisation 
and is entrusted with large volumes of private and confidential data by its member 
financial institutions. therefore, it is essential to safeguard public and institutional trust 
in the CrIb. Corruption in any form would threaten the CrIb’s credibility and integrity, 
thereby impeding its continuing operations. Corruption would also open the CrIb to 
public litigation under the CrIb act. therefore, the CrIb has in place an extensive system 
of checks and balances to prevent corruption.

We are proud to report that to date there have been no incidents or reports of corruption 
directed at the CrIb.

CrIb anti corruption initiatives

Formal Informal

the CrIb act has legally enforceable 
provisioning on data security that acts as 
deterrents to bribery and corruption. these 
legally binding stipulations discourage 
unauthorised disclosure of data and tampering 
of data by internal personnel and also external 
entities with legal access to CrIb data bases. 

anti corruption measures are enforced  
through a culture of integrity. From directors 
to employees, all CrIb personnel are informed 
of the legal consequences of corrupt practices, 
thereby discouraging corruption and 
encouraging professionalism.   In addition, 
the CrIb management takes all complaints 
seriously and are investigated.
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CRIB anti corruption framework

Culture of integrityIt and system audits

allow self monitoring 
of credit status

 regulation through statute 
 y  Declaration of secrecy by CrIb personnel
 y  Declaration of secrecy by lending institutions 
 y  Controls on releasing data
 y  offenses and penalties with criminal sanction 

CrIb 
anti-corruption  system

 y  Declaration of Secrecy by CRIB 
personnel: all CrIb directors and 
employees sign a Declaration of 
secrecy that prevents unauthorised 
disclosure of CrIb data.

“every Director of the bureau and all 
officers and servants of the bureau, 
shall before entering upon his duties, 
sign a declaration pledging himself to 
observe strict secrecy respecting all 
matter connected with the affairs of the 
bureau, and shall by such declaration 
pledge himself not to reveal any matters 
which may come to his knowledge in the 
performance or discharge of his duties and 
functions except -

a) when required to do so by a Court of 
law or by any person or body of person 
to whom such matters relate ; and

b) in order to comply with any of the 
provisions of this act.”

 Section 23 (1)

 y Declaration of secrecy by member 
lending institutions: the Declaration 
of secrecy form is submitted by 
every authorised CrIb user, and is 
authenticated by the relevant CrIb 
Compliance officer of the lending 
institution.

“every Director, officer or servant 
employed in the business of institution 
authorised to receive credit information 
which is a shareholder of the bureau shall 
sign a declaration pledging himself to 
observe strict secrecy in respect of credit 
or financial information obtained by such 
institution authorised to receive credit 
information from the bureau and all 
matters relating thereto, and shall by such 
declaration pledge himself not to reveal 
any such information or matter except –

(a)  when required to do so-
i)  by a Court of law
ii)  by the person to whom such 

information relates;
(b)  in order to comply with any provisions 

of this act or any other law.”
 Section 23 (2)

 y Specifying permissible purposes 
for accessing credit information : 
authorised CrIb users of member 
lending institutions are legally bound 
to observe 06 permissible reasons to 
access credit information. When a 
borrower submits an application with 
his signature to be considered for a 
credit facility, according to the above 
legal provisions, a lender could send a 
request to the bureau and receive credit 
information relating to the borrower
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Permissible reasons to access credit 
information :

 y  evaluating of a borrower for a new credit 
facility

 y  review as a guarantor for a new credit 
facility

 y  review as a partner/proprietor for a 
new credit facility

 y  review as a director for a new credit 
facility

 y  Monitoring and reviewing of an 
existing borrower

 y  opening of a current account

usage of credit information for any other 
purposes other than the above mentioned 
(06) six permissible reasons, according to the 
provisions of the act, is a punishable offence.
 Section 7 (B) (1) (a)

 y Issuance of Self Inquiry Reports 
(iReports): the CrIb act 1990 was 
amended in 2008, to allow any 
individual or corporate entity obtain 
his/her or its credit report (ireport) 
from the CrIb. this discourages 
corruption by making it possible 
for individuals or corporate entities 
to monitor the accuracy of their 
personal credit status. In the case of 
any discrepancy, the CrIb verifies with 
the data reporting institutions for any 
resolution

PublIC PolICy
the CrIb has traditionally adopted 
a position of political neutrality, and 
does not engage in any type of political 
advocacy and has made no political 
contributions, in money or in kind, either 
directly or indirectly, to any political party, 
to date. the CrIb has also received no 
external funds from political parties, or the 
government. all CrIb funds are generated 
through its business activities.

CrIb governance Contd.
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auDIt CoMMIttee rePort
Board Audit Committee Report
the board audit Committee established 
in the latter part of 2010 functions under 
the Charter & terms of reference adopted 
by the board of Directors. the audit 
Committee is empowered by the board to 
review the effectiveness of internal control 
systems, review external and internal audit 
reports and financial statements and assess 
compliance with regulatory requirements.

Composition of the Board Audit Committee
the board of directors has established 
the audit committee in accordance with 
best practices on audit committees. 
audit Committee consists of three (03) 
independent, non-executive directors 
appointed by the board. Members of the 
audit committee as at December 2014 are 
as follows:

 y  Mr. sanjeewa bandaranayake 
(Chairman)

 y  Mrs. yvette Fernando (Committee 
Member)

 y  Mr. rohitha ganegoda (Committee 
Member)

Mr. sanjeewa bandaranayake, current 
Chairman of the Committee is a Fellow 
member of the Institute of Chartered 
accountants of sri lanka and a Fellow 
member of the Certified Management 
accountants of sri lanka and australia.

Mrs. yvette Fernando is the Director bank 
supervision of the Central bank of sri 
lanka and Mr. rohitha ganegoda is the 
Chief operating officer of nations trust 
bank.

the Profiles of the members are given on 
pages 25 to 33 of this annual report.

Terms of Reference
the Charter of the audit Committee is 
subject to review periodically by the board 
of Directors and clearly defines the terms 
of reference of the audit Committee. 
the Committee is responsible to the 
board of Directors and its observations 
and recommendations are presented 
to the board for necessary action and 
implementation. the audit Committee 
provides a forum for the review of 
internal & external audit reports and any 
operational deficiencies and shortcomings 
are highlighted in such reports.

Meetings
the minutes of such meetings were 
thereafter tabled at subsequent meetings of 
the board of Directors.

the general Manager,Mr. gamini 
Karunaratne attended meetings by 
invitation.

Duties and Responsibilities of the Audit 
Committee
the purpose of the audit Committee 
is to assist the board of Directors in 
fulfilling successfully its responsibilities 
for the bureau’s accounting and financial 
reporting processes and audit of the 
financial statements.

Financial Reporting
 y  the Committee as a part of its 

responsibility oversees the bureau’s 
financial reporting process, on behalf 
of the board of Directors and reviewed 
and discussed the annual financial 
statements to ensure reliability of 
information to the stakeholders.

 y  Monitors integrity of the financial 
statements, management statements 
and any other formal announcements 
relating to its financial performance.

 y  adequacy and effectiveness of the 
internal controls, systems and 
procedures to provide reasonable 
assurance that all transactions are 
accurately and completely recorded.

 y  review Financial statements prior to 
submitting to the board / publication.

Internal Controls, Risk Management & Going 
Concern
the bureau also obtained the services of an 
independent professional accounting firm 
to carry out internal audit of the bureau 
& review their reports. the effectiveness of 
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CrIb governance Contd.

the internal control procedures in place to 
identify & manage all significant risks are 
being reviewed by the Committee & assess 
the bureau’s ability to continue as a going 
concern in the foreseeable future.

Regulatory Compliance
the committee closely monitors 
compliance relating to CrIb act no 
18 of 1990 as amended by act no 08 of 
1995 and act no 42 of 2008, secured 
transactions registry act no 49 of 2009 
and other statutory requirements and the 
systems and procedures in place to ensure 
compliance with such requirements.

Internal Audit
 y  Mandate internal auditors at regular 

intervals to review and report on the 
effectiveness of existing controls and 
procedures adopted by the bureau.

 y  ensures that internal audit functions 
are independent and are performed 
with impartiality, proficiency and due 
professional care.

 y  review the findings and 
recommendations of the internal 
auditors that enable the management 
responses on issues raised and assess 
the effectiveness of such findings and 
responses.

 y  Monitor management implementation 
of the recommendations suggested by 
the internal auditor.

 y  reviews, assesses and approve the 
internal audit plan and the internal 
audit programme.

External Audit
In regards to the external audit function 
of the bureau the role played by the 
committee is as follows.

 y  Monitor independence, objectivity and 
effectiveness of the external audit in 
accordance with applicable standards 
of best practice.

 y  assists board of Directors to implement 
processes of engaging external auditors 
for audit services and agree on their 
remuneration schemes.

 y  review to ensure that auditors comply 
with appropriate guidelines and apply 
relevant accounting standards.

 y Discussing the audit plan, scope and 
methodology proposed to be adopted 
in conducting the audit proceeding 
to commence the annual audit with 
external auditors.

 y  Follow up on the corrective action 
plan presented by the management on 
issues raised in the audit report.

Audit Committee Charter
the audit Committee Charter was last 
reviewed and revised in 2012 with the 
agreement of the board of Directors.

Professional Advice
the committee has an authority to seek 
external professional advice on matters 
within its purview.

Re-Appointment of External Auditors
the audit Committee in keeping the 
bureau’s policy recommended the board 
that ernst &young; Chartered accountants 
be re-appointed as external auditors for the 
financial year ending 31st December 2015.

Sanjeewa Bandaranayake
Chairman - Board Audit Committee
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reMuneratIon CoMMIttee rePort
1. Composition and charter of the Human 
Resources and Remuneration Committee
the board appointed Human resources 
and remuneration Committee comprise of 
the following two non executive Directors. 
the general Manager participates in 
all deliberations of this Committee and 
attends the meetings by invitation.

 y  Mr. n Vasantha Kumar – Chairman 
(non executive)

 y  Mr. sanjeewa bandaranayake – non 
executive

the Committee was established by the 
board on a formal and transparent process 
and the board ensures the independence of 
the Committee.

role oF tHe HuMan resourCes anD 
reMuneratIon CoMMIttee

 y  Maintain a competitive and attractive 
remuneration package for employees 
at all levels on par with industry 
standards.

 y  Formulate policy on executive and non 
executive remuneration.

 y  evaluate the performance of the 
general Manager and key management 
personnel against pre-agreed goals/
targets and recommend rewards/
promotions to the board of Directors.

 y  recommending annual bonuses, 
incentive payments, allowances to the 

board based on individual performances, responsibility, expertise and contribution.
 y  Make recommendations to the board of Directors from time to time of the new staff/ 

expertise required in order to enhance the quality of service.
 y  recommend/ give directions to the board on disciplinary matters if any, relating to 

key management personnel.

the Committee recognises rewards as one of the key drivers influencing employee output 
which in turn have a direct impact on the service levels of the organisation.

2. Remuneration Packages
the remuneration packages of the employees consists of a fixed and variable component. 
the basic salary and travelling allowance is fixed, whereas the other benefits are variable.

Fixed Components Variable Components

basic salary annual bonus

travelling allowance Incentive bonus

apart from the above, there are other benefits enjoyed by employees such as loans, 
medical insurance etc.

3. Retirement Benefits
there are no retirement benefits to employees other than gratuity calculated at half 
months basic salary for each completed year of service.

I confirm that the Committee fulfilled its role as a sub-Committee with great care and 
diligence.

the performance evaluation procedure adopted by the bureau is well in place and 
encourages employees to give their best to the institution.

N. Vasantha Kumar
Chairman – Remuneration Committee
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teCHnICal CoMMIttee rePort
the technical Committee is appointed 
by the board of Directors as a standing 
committee to assist the board of 
Directors in its oversight of technical 
matters particularly on information and 
communication technology matters of the 
bureau. the technical Committee report 
to the board as requested by the board, or 
as otherwise is necessary, or appropriate 
to ensure the board is properly updated on 
technical operational matters.

the technical Committee comprises three 
non executive directors and names and 
their profiles are provided on pages 25 to 33 
in this report.

During 2015 three committee meetings 
were held during months of January, 
June and august. the committee received 
updates from the management on key 
technical areas and guided the It team in 
technology management front to increase 
delivery efficiency of the bureau is ICt 
based services. the technical committee 
in discharging its mandate continued to 
provide appropriate recommendations to 
the board. Main area of focus during 2015 
are as follows.

1. Procurement of new credit bureau system
CrIb progressed on the procurement 
process of the new system. Project team 
advised by the Messrs ernst & young 
continued the evaluation process and 

completed the technical & financial 
evaluation. the technical Committee 
reviewed the process followed by the 
project team and made recommendations 
to the board.

on the directions of the board, a probity 
audit was conducted by Messrs KPMg to 
ensure the integrity of the process applied 
on procurement process. the technical 
Committee having studied the findings 
of the probity audit advised the project 
team on action to be taken. the Committee 
continued to engage with the project team 
and guided them to ensure audit findings 
are properly attended.

2. Online registration for Corporate iReport
the technical Committee, in response 
to requests made by small and medium 
business community, directed the CrIb 
to explore the possibility of providing 
a secured online registration method 
for proprietors of such businesses to 
access their ireports. the CrIb extended 
improvement to the existing ireport 
online service and introduced a secure 
methodology for this purpose and deployed 
it for user testing before public launch.

3. Existing credit information management 
system and internal ICT infrastructure
In order to have a sustainable system 
response time to meet ever increasing 
demand for credit information services 
from members, the CrIb It team 
continued with system improvements by 

upgrading existing hardware to the extent 
possible and introducing limited system 
and software changes to the existing 
bureau system.

the bureau enhanced the internal 
ICt facilities by phasing out use of old 
hardware and further implementing 
security measures under external 
information security auditor’s supervision.
the technical Committee continued to 
guide and direct the CrIb It team in these 
endeavors.

Yvette Fernando
Chairman – Technical Committee
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ManageMent 
DIsCussIon & analysIs

this section presents an overview of the global 
credit agency industry,  the CrIb strategy, 
the CrIb risk profile for the year, and key 
performance related sub reports. these sub 
reports include:

 y  the ‘operations review’ which quantifies the 
full year’s work output of the CrIb

 y  the ‘Financial review,’ which sets out the 
CrIb’s financial situation  as at end December 
2015

 y the ‘It system review’ which explains 
improvements to the CrIb It system, which 
is the central component of CrIb operations. 

 y  several sub reports on CrIb stakeholder 
engagements with different stakeholder 
groups
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the history of credit information sharing 
goes back to the early 1820s in the united 
states, where a group of new york 
wholesalers  formed a society and hired a 
credit investigator in an attempt to manage 
the riskiness of mercantile or trade credit. 
Credit reporting agencies (Cra) as it was 
historically referred to, originated in the 
us during the 1830s. Dun and bradstreet, 
the oldest agency still in existence, 
traces its roots to the mercantile agency 
established in 1841, in new york. one of 
the first consumer credit bureaus was 
established in the united Kingdom in late 
eighteen hundreds. 

Consumer and commercial information 
sharing in developed countries saw 
tremendous growth in the latter part of the 
19th and early 20th centuries, with private 
and public credit reporting entities being 
established. at the same time, economic 
crises that have roots in the financial 
sector, also encouraged some countries 
to establish or fortify credit registries.  
between 1990 and 2005 the total number of 
credit bureaus has more than doubled.

today, the credit reporting industry 
is growing worldwide, spurred by 
technological innovations and the 
liberalisation of financial markets. In asia 

InternatIonal enVIronMent

many emerging markets turned towards 
credit reporting after the financial crisis in 
the nineties. 

WHo oWns CreDIt bureaus
globally credit information agencies are 
owned by different economic agents and 
in some cases, as in sri lanka, different 
economic entities share the ownership of a 
credit agency. 

the 59%, of the world credit bureaus 
were owned by private companies and 
28% of the agencies were owned by credit 
providers themselves. only 9% of the world 
credit agencies were owned by industry 
associations and only 4% were partially 
government owned. 

legIslatIon For CreDIt rePortIng 
the main objective of legislation to enable 
credit reporting is to balance the ability of 
institutions to exchange credit information 
in the normal course of business, while 
simultaneously protecting individual 
rights to privacy. Worldwide, two broad 
approaches to the regulation of credit 
reporting can be identified: 

i. use of broad data protection laws and 
consumer privacy & secrecy provisions  

ii. use of specific credit bureau or credit 
reporting laws

the sri lankan credit bureau law is one of 
the oldest credit reporting laws enacted at 
the early stage of industry development. 
significantly, the domestic law has  
established a time-tested private-public 
partnership for credit reporting ; a role 
model credit reporting framework  in the 
south asain region.
 
InternatIonal trenDs In CreDIt 
rePortIng
globalisation, technological innovation 
and the liberalisation of markets have been 
influential factors in changing the initial 
scope of credit bureaus and the role they 
play in fast changing financial markets. 
over the last two decades, the range of 

Industry association 9%
Privete owned by Credit Providers 28%
Private not owned bu CPs 59%
Partially gov. owned 4%

Global Ownership Structure of Credit Bureaus
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products offered by credit bureaus has 
broadened significantly apart from the 
generic credit information services such 
as  credit reports or bureau credit score. 
In developed markets, the scope of bureau 
products is well aligned with the specific 
market needs. Most value-added services 
and product offering cover different phases 
of client management; generally called as 
‘customer life cycle’ (ClC). 

the predictive nature of the bureau data 
has made it possible for business users to 
make faster and more accurate decisions 
at each stage of the ClC, from prospecting 
new clients and managing subsequent 
engagements of a client relationship.
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the primary objective of the CrIb is to 
ensure that obligations to CrIb member 
institutions and the general public, 
are met, as specified by the CrIb act. 
therefore, our sustainability strategy is to 
meet our obligations under the CrIb act 
by:

 y  Developing credit information related 
products and services

 y  Developing human resources
 y  Developing It systemic capabilities
 y  ensuring our financial stability : the 

sustainability of the CrIb has a direct 
impact on overall financial system 
stability. this also makes it important 
that the CrIb remains financially 
sustainable - despite being a non-profit, 
public service institution.

CrIb sustaInabIlIty strategy

CrIb groWtH Plans
the CrIb is the sole agency with 
the mandate to discharge all credit 
information functions for the entire 
country. However, at present the CrIb 
provides only a limited range of credit 
information services, for a limited 
number of market segments, where 
market penetration is still fairly moderate. 
therefore, the CrIb has significant 
opportunities for growth through 
developing new markets, developing new 
products and increasing the level of market 
penetration in existing markets.

CrIb sustaInabIlIty strategy

our vision, our collective crusade, our responsibility

 y ensure financial stability  
 y Develop It systems  
 y Develop human resources  
 y Develop products/services  capabilities

Meet obligations under the CrIb act
Meet primary 

objectives

Implement our 
values

Create sustainable 
value

Bring New Products 
 y  utility Payments
 y  Credit score 
 y  Customised Credit Data analysis 

reports

Reach More People
 y  Moveable assets registry (str)
 y  Micro Credit transactions 
 y  Pawning/gold loans  transactions

Increase Affordability and 
Approachability 

 y  reduce Prices
 y  Public relations 

2018 / 20

2016 / 18

2015

Introduce new products 

enter new 
markets with 

new and existing 
products

Increase  
business 
volumes 
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as part of the risk management process the  board regularly evaluates the operating 
environment for potential risks that could impede the CrIb from achieving its strategic 
objectives. risks are identified and regularly monitored and control processes are 
introduced to ensure risk management is effective.  

CrIb rIsK ManageMent ProCess

Meeting CrIb obligations under the CrIb act

strategic objectives

board of Directors  set strategic objectives 

Monitor risks

board sub 
Committees

Management 
Committees

rIsK ManageMent reVIeW
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rIsK ClassIFICatIon   
through the risk identification and risk assessment process described above, the CrIb 
classifies risks according to the potential impact and the likelihood of occurrence.  as at 
end 2015, the CrIb’s potential financial risks were fairly low, and only one type of risk, It 
system related risks, were classified  with high likelihood of impact.  However, the CrIb is 
currently in the process of addressing this risk. risks such as reputational risk have reduced 
in importance as the CrIb’s credibility and level of public acceptance continued to increase.
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 y lower response rate  y It system saturation

M

 y Investment risk  y  It system going 
down

 y  reduction in data 
accuracy 

 y  reduction in data 
quality 

 y  Delays in data 
submission

l

 y unauthorised access 
to data

 y breach of secrecy 
 y Interest rate risk 

 y reputational risk  y risks of non 
compliance with 
regulations

 y  Credit risk

l M H

Potential impact of the risk on the CRIB

risk Management review Contd.
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sIgnIFICant rIsKs anD HoW We Manage tHe rIsKs 
the potential risks faced by the CrIb can be classified broadly under regulatory, financial, operational and social risks.  the strategies 
formulated for minimising these risks are described below. 

Regulatory risk Risk management strategy

Lapses in regulatory compliance: non compliance poses a 
risk of loss of credibility and reputation  that could in turn 
impact operations of the CrIb.

regulatory compliance is continually monitored by the Compliance 
officers of member institutions, Head of Finance and the board of 
Directors of CrIb. 

Operational risks Risk management strategy

Unauthorised access to  data: unauthorised access to CrIb 
data bases could lead to loss of data, misuse of data and lack of 
credibility in the CrIb.

 y online users (except users of CrIb member organisations) are 
required to be present themselves at the bureau with valid proof 
of identity, to register for online access. 

 y all data interchange and web service channels are encrypted 
using industry standards encryption mechanisms.

 y ICt infrastructure is secured with industry standard logical 
safeguards and periodic reviews for any potential vulnerabilities 
and service exploitations are conducted by the external Is 
auditors periodically. 

 y Physical access to the CrIb  operational area is strictly controlled 
with biometric devices installed at every entry point and 
movements around the data centre and lobby area, are video 
monitored and recorded.

 y a Visitor register is maintained at the reception and visitors are 
allowed inside the operational area only under supervision of a 
CrIb employee.

 y all correspondence with each member institution is coordinated 
and communicated only through a Compliance officer appointed 
by the Chief executive of the said institution.

Breach of secrecy:  y all officers in financial institutions who are authorised to access 
credit information are required to sign a “Declaration of secrecy.”

 y stipulated guidelines/procedures, are followed strictly, when 
disclosing the credit information to those it relates to. 

 y access credentials are only issued  to a  pre-defined number of   
users at each institution.  
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risk Management review Contd.

Data related risks: any deficiency in quality or accuracy of 
data impact the value  of  information and service integrity of 
the CrIb.  

CrIb has no control over input data for CrIb credit reports, as such 
data are provided by member financial institutions. to minimise data 
risks: 

 y a system based validation mechanism based on rules and 
conditions is deployed to mitigate data submission errors. 

 y all member institutions have been instructed  and are supervised 
to adhere to set guidelines in order to maintain data accuracy.

Non submission/delays of data: non-submission of data 
or delays in submission by member institutions can make 
information obsolete and less important and relevant to 
business decisions.  

 y grace period for submission delay is 2 months. non-compliance 
will lead to suspension of membership as per the CrIb act sec. 26a. 

 y In addition to the regular monthly updates, the bureau allows 
members access for interim submission of data. 

IT related risks :
 y It system capacity and expansion capability
 y Data security
 y efficiency of online  access

 y the CrIb is in the process of upgrading the It system to enhance 
capacity.

 y Periodic vulnerability assessment and security audits are 
conducted by the contracted It experts.

 y external auditors’ reports are submitted to the board appointed 
audit Committee and the board is updated on a regular basis with 
an action plan and risk mitigation measures.

 y It and application system providers are engaged for resolution of 
system level risks. 

Financial risks Risk management strategy

Interest rate risk: Interest income is not a main income of the CrIb. therefore this risk  
has minimum impacts.

Credit risk: since the customers of the CrIb are banks, finance companies and 
leasing companies there is minimum threat of credit risk.

Social risks Risk management strategy

Reputational risk: this refers to the CrIb’s credibility and 
integrity. these risks have profound impacts on the bureau’s 
service quality  and statutory reputation.  

 y the CrIb conducted a number of awareness and public relations 
exercises during the year to gain visibility, enhance credibility 
and build trust.

 y Protect customer confidentiality – please refer breach of secrecy 
and unauthorised access to data  given above.  

 y Maintain quality of CrIb credit reports. 
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Key indicators that are monitored for CrIb effectiveness are listed below. 

 y  Total number of credit reports issued : this is the primary operational indicator of the CrIb and refers to all credit reports issued by 
the CrIb, including to authorised lending institutions and the public. these reports include credit information on both businesses 
and individuals. the total reports issued saw a significant increase of 45% year-on-year. 

 y  Number of users registering to view credit history online (iReports) : this is another key indicator of CrIb operational 
performance, as it reflects the  value of accessing credit information by individuals. this online facility (ireport online) is currently 
limited to individuals.  this segment grew by 17% during the period under review.

 y  Number of disputes on credit reports (iReports) issued by the CRIB : this is a reflection of the data quality and reliability of CrIb 
reports, as ‘disputes’ on credit reports arise due to errors in reporting of data providers. therefore, the current year’s decrease in 
‘disputes’ by 35% is a reflection of improved data-quality controls adopted by the CrIb and data providers’ continuous effort on 
improving submission standards. 

Indicators 2015 2014 %  Change 

total number of credit reports issued 6,914,872 4,765,871 45%

number of users registering to view credit history online 1312 1,125 17%

number of disputes on credit reports issued by CrIb 184 281 (35%)

PerForManCe :  CreDIt rePorts 
CrIb issues credit reports about the credit history of corporates and individuals. these reports are classified into two types of  reports 
for  member institutions and self Inquiry reports for the general public.  

Credit Information Reports for member institutions
CrIb issues two types of reports to lending institutions - Comprehensive Consumer Credit reports and Comprehensive Corporate Credit 
reports. a noHit report is issued when the CrIb databases does not contain any information regarding the requested corporate or 
individual. In 2015, over 6.9 Mn credit reports were issued to CrIb member lending institutions, which is an increase of 45% against 
2014.  

 y  Comprehensive Consumer Credit Reports: these reports contain detailed credit and repayment histories and demographic 
information of individuals.   
the number of consumer credit reports issued increased by 45.8% during the year. 

 y  Comprehensive Corporate Credit Reports: these reports contain details of corporate entities and their credit and repayment 
histories.  
the number of reports issued regarding the credit history of corporate entities increased by 26.6%. 

oPeratIons reVIeW
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operations review Contd.

Self Inquiry Reports (iReports)
 y  iReport Corporate/ Consumer : any individual or corporate entity  can request his / her / its own credit report ireport from the 

CrIb. 
 
the number of ireports issued during 2015 to corporate entities increased by 97.69%, while reports issued to consumers, increased by 
37.42%. ireport can be requested directly from the CrIb office or through any bank. 
 
any individual can directly call over at the bureau office personally on any working day and obtain their (ireport). 
 
ireport application can also be sent through any bank to the bureau and CrIb will deliver the ireport to the home address of the 
applicant through registered post. the online service to issue ireports (ireport online) was introduced by the CrIb in 2014 and is 
currently available only for individuals. online access to personal credit reports can be obtained after registering with the CrIb and 
receiving a user credentials.  this is the fastest growing form of credit report as more consumers realise the value of monitoring their 
credit history.  the number of online ireports increased by 142.51% in 2015, compared to 2014. 

Bulk Requests
the CrIb accommodates bulk requests by lending institutions to periodically monitor credit status of their existing  borrower profiles. 
this currently represents a very minor share of CrIb revenues. 

Category Type of the Report 2015 2014 % Change

Credit Information reports for 
Member Institutions

Consumer Credit reports          6,680,301          4,581,690 45.80 

Corporate Credit reports              221,259              174,728 26.63 

Total          6,901,560          4,756,418 45.10 

Category Type of the Report 2015 2014 % Change

self Inquiry reports (ireports) ireport Consumer                12,468                  9,073 37.42 

ireport Corporate                      342                      173 97.69 

online ireport                      502                      207 142.51 

Total                  13,312                  9,453 40.82 
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aCCuraCy oF Data
Data Corrections 
Data correction requests are accommodated only through lending institutions and not from individuals or businesses. During the 12 
months under review the number of requests for data corrections increased by 118%.

Type 2014 2015 % change 

Data Corrections 769 1,677 118%

a member institution can request a correction of data reported to the CrIb to rectify any incorrect submission of its own data, or to 
resolve any dispute raised by an individual or corporate.

iReport  vs Online iReport
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FInanCIal reVIeW

oPeratIonal InCoMe
the CrIb’s income from credit reports 
increased by 3% year-on-year to reach rs 
872 Mn, as a result of the 45% increase in 
the number of credit reports issued during 
the financial year 2015.  the much lower 
growth rate in revenues, compared to the 
rate of growth of credit reports, is due to 
the CrIb decision to enhance value for 
members and the public by reducing the 
price of credit reports. Despite this rate cut, 
the CrIb  was able to maintain a marginal 
increase in operational income due to the 
significant increase in the number of credit 
reports issued during the period.

Operational Income

Rs. Mn.
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the main income of the CrIb is generated 
through credit reports. In addition, 
self inquiry reports contribute to the 
operational income of the CrIb. During 
the year the CrIb  took several measures 
to improve customer and public awareness 
of the importance of credit reports. as a 
result of such public engagements, demand 
for  self inquiry reports  increased by 39% 
during the year.

otHer InCoMe
the other income of the CrIb, which 
accounts for 18% of total revenue,  is 
mainly generated through interest income 
from government securities. During 
the current financial year, total interest 
incomes accrued to  rs 191 Mn. 
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Operational Income Investment income

net ProFIt 
We are happy to report that despite the 
significant loss in revenues due to the 
reduction of credit report charges, the CrIb  
was able to record a net profit growth of 3% 
during the year 2015, to rs 811 Mn.
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oPeratIonal eXPenses
the overall expenses increased by 11% in 
2015 to rs 199 Mn. operational expenses 
comprised mainly of employee related 
expenses, administration and establishment 
expenses and other operating expenses.  
Most of the expenditure of the CrIb are 
relatively fixed.  Due to the increased costs, 
against a much lower rate in revenue 
growth, the cost to income ratio increased 
from 21% in 2014 to of 23%  in  2015. as 
this change is primarily due to the lower 
revenue growth rate stemming from the 
reduction in credit report charges, we are 
confident the cost to income ratio will 
stabilise in the short term. 
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net assets Per sHare
Due to asset growth, the net asset per share 
value of the CrIb reached rs  13,338, the 
highest ever recorded during the past 10 
years of CrIb operations.  
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earnIng Per sHare
even though charges decreased during the 
year 2015, earning per share grew by  3% 
during the year to rs 3,244.
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DIVIDenD Per sHare 
the CrIb proposed a final dividend of rs 
650 per share, on the profit declared for 
the year. It will amount to a total dividend 
payout of rs 162.5 Mn in the year 2015 . 
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eConoMIC 
Value 
CreatIon

eConoMIC ContrIbutIons 

economic performance is a key 
sustainability criterion for the CrIb 
as the CrIb’s statutorily mandated 
role, is as a national economic enabler. 
In addition, financial sustainability, 
at an organisational level, is vital 
for the CrIb’s regular operations 
and independence. During 2015, 
the CrIb continued to discharge its 
duties as a national economic entity 
by contributing towards credit risk 
management of the country. this 
contribution is discussed in the 
operational review. the Financial 
review section presents an analysis of 
the CrIb’s internal financial health.

Direct economic value generated (EC1) 
2015

Rs Mn
2014

Rs Mn

revenues 872.92 847.87

Economic value distributed :    

operating costs 147.66 138.21

employee wages and benefits 51.82 41.52

Payments to providers of capital 162.50 150.00

Payments to government 166.73 138.67

Community investments 2.80 2.91

economic value retained 2,189.10 1,530.89

Revenues
Operation cost
Employee Wages and benefits
Payments to Providers of  Capital
Payments to government
Community Investments
Economic value retained

Economic Value Distribution
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Indirect economic impacts of the CrIb 
are defined as impacts that are above and 
beyond the CrIb’s financial performance 
and the CrIb’s direct economic value 
creation. these are broader economic 
impacts that lead to economic growth and 
quality of life improvements that occur due 
to operations of the CrIb. these indirect 
impacts, although not directly quantifiable, 
are considered material to this report due 
to their overall socio-economic benefits to 
all stakeholders.

Credit reports have significant socio-
economic impacts, as access to credit 
increases opportunities for livelihood 
creation and quality of life improvements. 
life style credit facilities currently 
available in the country, through the 
formal financial sector include housing 
loans, vehicles loans, educational loans and 
other personal loans. the CrIb’s individual 
credit reports are recognised as an effective 
tool for credit underwriting by all lending 
institutions in the country. therefore, our 
credit reports support individuals to access 
any type of life style loans for personal and 
family life improvements.

CrIb reports also facilitate access to credit 
for start up businesses. the new CrIb str 
facility makes it possible for small business 
to pledge moveable property as collateral 
to access credit from the formal financial 
sector.

InDIreCt eConoMIC IMPaCts

Credit reports also support employment opportunities. Increasingly employers are 
concerned about employees’ financial integrity and require proof of financial discipline. 
the CrIb personal credit report (ireport) can meet this requirement.

Quality of life 

economic growth

Individual and Household 
growth 

businesses 
growth

CrIb

Promote  
Investment

Minimise the Credit 
risk

Increase access to 
Credit
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sIgnIFICant InDIreCt eConoMIC 
IMPaCts, InCluDIng tHe eXtent oF 
IMPaCts
Indirect economic impacts of CrIb can be 
listed as :

 y  supporting economic growth by 
expanding credit flow.

 y  Positively impacting investment flows 
by influencing sri lanka’s ranking in 
the World bank’s Doing business Index. 
ease of accessing credit is one of the 
elements examined by the index in 
ranking countries. 

 y  enhancing financial system stability by 
reducing credit risk.

 y enhancing portfolio quality.
 y Discouraging credit related fraud.
 y  supporting businesses by increasing 

access to credit through credit profiles.
 y  supporting economic advancement of 

individuals, by creating reputational 
collateral which makes them formally 
credit worthy.

Indirect economic Impacts Contd.
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the CrIb discharges its mandate by 
electronically collecting, organising and 
storing credit information from member 
lending institutions. this process is 
managed through the Data submission 
system (Dss) and Credit Information 
Management system (CrIMs). the key 
quality parameters of the CrIb data 
management process, are data quality and 
data security.

InPut Data QualIty
Input data for credit reports are submitted 
by the member institutions. therefore data 
quality, in the CrIb context, refers to:

 y  Validity and accuracy of data submitted 
by member institutions

 y  timely submissions by member 
institutions

Data quality parameters are aimed at 
eliminating data errors that would lead to 
errors in credit reports. the CrIb promotes 
input data quality by maintaining an 
internal rating system to rate member 
institutions on the three criteria of; 
data validity, data quality and timely 
submissions. the CrIb adopts a strict 
data validation mechanism internally to 
technically qualify input data  before they 
are written into the production system. 
analytical reports on validation efficiency 
are internally reviewed and shared with 
data providers for further action on 
improvements. 

CrIb It systeM reVIeW

Primary 
Validation 
success?

submitted 
Within the 
Deadline?

secondary 
Validation 
success?

Member Institutions 
submit Credit Data

Dss

system 
Dashboard

CrIMs

rating

 y Primary Validation  y secondary 
Validation & 
Quality Check

 y Monitor timely 
submissions of 
Data

normal 
submission

success

submission 
Details

Credit  Data
 submission

submission Fail

submission Fail

Quality 
rating Info

late
submission

 y CrIb rating 
system rates 
lending 
Institutions

the CrIb recognises the institutions with the best data quality, based on internal rating 
system. In 2014, we were able to improve our data validity to 99%, which is one of the best 
standards in the asian region.
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Data seCurIty
Data security is essential to ensure 
confidentiality and to prevent abuse of 
CrIb data. Data security is facilitated 
through a number of security processes. 
these include:

 y  end to end encryption of data.
 y  Data storage is monitored by 

the industry best database audit 
application to monitor against 
unauthorised access.

 y  online ireports incorporate security 
features such as Qr codes, tamper 
proof strip and other hidden features, 
to prevent counterfeiting attempts.

 y online users are notified by sMs alerts 
when ever their profiles are updated or 
accessed.

 y  lending institutions are required to 
obtain owner consent to access profiles.

 y Dual authorisation process is in place 
for CrIb officials to access data for 
investigations purpose.

CrIb systeM seCurIty
access to CrIb data bases and computers 
is restricted to authorised personnel. the 
CrIb It system is regularly monitored by  
an independent It systems auditor. two 
types of audits are conducted.
1. online audits: these are random 

audits, conducted every 2 months for 6 
audits per year. these audits check for 
web threats.

2. on site audits: these are quarterly 
audits for physical and logical security.

audit report summaries are sent to the  
board technical sub Committee and 
conveyed to the board.

IMProVIng our It systeM
the current CrIb It system has been 
operational since 2008. the system is 
now experiencing capacity constraints. 
the CrIb system also has a relatively 
high data processing turn-around time. 
therefore, we are currently in the process 
of acquiring a new It system that will 
enhance the operational capacities and 
expand CrIb products and services. the 
new system is expected to:

 y  generate reports faster
 y  Improve the processing turn around 

time
 y  allocate credit scores to individuals 

and business. 
 y  generate analytical and adhoc reports 

for different stakeholders 
 y Capture non financial data into the 

CrIb data stream
 y  Introduce e-alerts system for 

individuals and corporate borrowers

CrIb It system review Contd.
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the current 
financial year has 
been significant 
for the CrIb as we 
commemorated 
25 years of service 
in May 2015. We 
celebrated our 
silver Jubilee with 
a number of events 
that involved our 
stakeholders. 

PeoPle
the current financial year has been significant for the CrIb as it commemorated 25 
years of service. the silver jubilee was celebrated with a number of events involving 
our stakeholders and blessed by multi religious ceremonies. the CrIb fulfilled its 
responsibility towards the society by conducting a large number of service projects 
during 2015. a forum organised for our shareholders was a memorable event for all 
who shared their time and effort in the past and the present for the development and 
advancement of the CrIb.  the staff of the CrIb was felicitated with a dinner hosted by 
the general Manager. 

CelebratIng 25 years oF serVICe WItH our staKeHolDers
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Forum for the shareholders Staff celebrations CRIB Annual Shareholder Meeting

Celebrating 25 years of service With our stakeholders Contd.
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engagIng WItH our staKeHolDers
CRIB stakeholders
stakeholders of the CrIb are identified primarily based on the CrIb act. the CrIb act 
defines CrIb’s role in sri lankan society and specifies to some extent, the stakeholders 
that the organisation must engage with, such as the Ministry of Finance, the Central 
bank, member institutions, the public of sri lanka and employees. these stakeholder 
groups influence CrIb strategy and daily operations.

our aPProaCH to staKeHolDer engageMent
In deciding which groups to select as stakeholders for CrIb engagement, and to decide on 
the level of engagement we considered the level of influence exerted on CrIb by different 
groups and their interest in CrIb activities.

St
ak
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 y other regulators
 y government 

 y Central bank
 y employees
 y Member lending 

institutions

M

 y auditors

l

 y suppliers  y Customers

l M H

Level of stakeholder interest in the CRIB
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staKeHolDer engageMent 2015 

Stakeholder 
group

Frequency of 
engagement 

Method of engagement 
Stakeholder expectations 
from CRIB

 CRIB response to stakeholder 
expectations 

Regulators as required relevant regulatory institutions 
are:

 y Inland revenue Department
 y ePF and etF boards
 y Ministry of labour

CrIb engages with these 
institutions through the 
statutory reporting processes

 y to honour statutory 
obligations

 y transparency
 y Compliance

 y Meeting statutory obligations
 y Providing accurate information

Member 
institutions

Daily  y annual shareholders meeting
 y audited accounts and annual 

report
 y annual symposium for CrIb 

compliance officers
 y user awareness programmes

 y accurate credit 
information about 
individuals and 
commercial entities

 y accurate information on 
moveable assets pledged 
as collateral for loans 

 y the Credit Information 
Management system (CrIMs) 
provides credit information 
services to member institutions

 y the bureau business services 
system (bbs) has been set up as 
a supportive module for CrIMs 
operations.

 y secured transactions registry 
system has been developed to 
register security interest on 
movable assets.

Employees Daily  y Monthly meetings
 y employee events 

 y benefits
 y Job security
 y growth and development 

 y CrIb employees benefits 
include:

 y Interest subsidy on Housing 
loan schemes

 y Medical insurance
 y Concessionary staff loans
 y employees are also provided 

training for growth and 
development

Celebrating 25 years of service With our stakeholders Contd.
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Stakeholder 
group

Frequency of 
engagement 

Method of engagement 
Stakeholder expectations 
from CRIB

 CRIB response to stakeholder 
expectations 

Public Daily Public awareness programmes 
such as:

 y Workshops
 y Paper advertisements
 y Mass media, such as tV 

programmes
 y Write-ups in popular 

magazines 

 y accurate & up to date 
credit information

 y efficient customer service
 y Data related disputes 

resolution
 y Preventing fraud
 y Confidentiality

 y Facilitating data accuracy
 y Issuing self inquiry credit 

reports for individual and 
corporate (ireports)

 y Facilitating online access to 
ireports

 y Coordination with reporting 
institutions to resolve disputes

 y ensuring secrecy of credit data 
for customer privacy

Auditors Quarterly  y auditors are appointed by the 
board. 

 y timely submissions of 
accounts

 y Provide access to accurate 
information on time

Suppliers Daily  y routine contact related to 
purchase of products and 
services

 y timely payments 
 y transparent 

procurement process

 y transparent formal procedures 
for the selection of suppliers

 y Formal payment procedures

Key toPICs anD ConCerns raIseD tHrougH staKeHolDer engageMent
no specific concerns were raised by any major stakeholders/groups during the year. all stakeholder comments were routine inquiries. 
Please refer the operations review on page 59 for information on customer dispute resolutions.  
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CustoMer ConFIDentIalIty 
Customer privacy and confidentiality is a 
strategic priority for CrIb and is enforced 
through the CrIb act. the CrIb act states 
that the use of CrIb information for 
purposes other than those stipulated by the 
CrIb act, are punishable by law. therefore, 
we take all precautions possible to prevent 
breach of confidentiality. 

We are happy to report that to date there 
have been no leaks, loss of data, or breach 
of confidentiality in the CrIb systems. 
However, threats to data security are 
treated as a high risk by the CrIb and risk 
management strategies, through It system 
security and internal controls, are in place.  

CoMPlIanCe WItH CustoMer 
PrIVaCy
During 2015, the CrIb did not face any 
fines or non-monetary sanctions due to 
non compliance with customer privacy 
related regulations. 

our CustoMers 
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the CrIb operates primarily with two community groups. these are our member 
institutions and the general public of sri lanka who are borrowers of credit, or are 
potential borrowers. therefore it is necessary that we build relationships with both social 
segments, to ensure sustainable long term operations. 

CrIb  
Community 
engagement

 y training programmes 
 y sponsorships 
 y Compliance officers Forum
 y CrIb operations
 y Workshops/awareness 

Programmes

 y awareness  Programmes
 y sponsorships 
 y Csr activities 
 y Dispute resolution

CrIb Member 
Institution

general Public

CrIb InVestMents In CoMMunIty engageMents In 2015
In 2015, the CrIb invested over rs 3.5 Mn in training programmes and workshops for 
members of the public, sponsorships, public relations activities and Csr activities. 

Activity  Cost Rs 

Public awareness activities 2,159,542

sponsorships of member institutional events and public  
welfare events  

225,000

Csr activities    1,211,949

Total 3,596,491

buIlDIng relatIonsHIPs

ConneCtIng WItH our MeMber 
InstItutIons
CrIb training programmes are aimed at 
credit officers, managers, Ceos and other 
personnel of lending institutions who 
are involved in evaluating and making 
decisions on credit. our programmes were 
aimed at educating officials of lending 
institutions on correct interpretation 
of credit information in credit reports, 
improving the quality & validity of data 
submitted to the CrIb and also correcting 
misconceptions regarding CrIb services.

In addition to these training programmes, 
we also sponsored a number of welfare 
events organised by our member 
institutions.
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building relationships Contd.

annual CoMPlIanCe oFFICers ForuM
the 6th annual Co forum was held at the Hilton residences to educate compliance officers of member institutions about CrIb 
operations

ConneCtIng WItH tHe PublIC
the CrIb conducts a range of public relations activities to raise awareness and clear up misconceptions about the CrIb. these activities 
are listed below.

Type of activity Description Investment 

articles and 
advertisements in 
english, sinhala and 
tamil newspapers and 
magazines

We published informative articles about CrIb services in the print media.  y rs. 1,817,790
 y Management timesinhala publications: lankadeepa, Divaina, Mawbima, lakbima, lMD 

Dirimaga magazine

english publications: Daily Mirror, Daily Ft, sunday Island,echelon 
magazine

television appearances  the DgM of CrIb participated in the Derana 24 x 7 news interview 
Programme on Derana tV

 y CrIb management and 
personnel time

 y stationary for participants
 y educational documents
 y transportation of CrIb 

internal resource personnel 

Workshops the CrIb conducted 3 workshops for the public targeting 

 y employees of Mas Intimates

 y employees of the noyon lanka - biyagama FtZ

 y Management students of the Wayamba university of sri lanka
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Type of activity Description Investment 

Mediation services  In 2015, 184 disputes were brought to the CrIb regarding the credit 
information presented in self inquiry credit reports (ireports) by end 2015, 
106 disputes were resolved.

 y Management and personnel 
time

 y CrIb resources

sponsorships the CrIb sponsored a number of public welfare events during the year  y rs 225,000
 y CrIb resources
 y Management time

 y FInanCIa 2015 Programme

 y Peoples leasing Fund raising Project

 y Drama of sMIb sport & Welfare society

 y annual get-together of leasing association of sri lanka

Csr projects book Donation -Vidyadeepa Vidyalaya at ranawana,thorayaya  y rs 1,211,949
 y Management and personnel 

time
Provision of Construction Material - gunawardanaramaya -slave Island 

Constructed a shelter - Wattala

assisted the special Children Foundation - navodya special Children 
Foundation 

Donated a water purifier - seewali Vidyalaya at senapura

Csr ProJeCts
the CrIb contributes funds and resources for community welfare projects that benefit underserved populations and those in need. a 
procedure has been established to select suitable Csr programmes.

recommendation

recommendation

 y approval for
        funds

 y Directions
 y guidance

Csr Project Implementation

staff Member

approval

CrIb-board

general Manager /
Management-CrIb

CRIB-CSR Committee

 y legal and general Viability 
assessment 

 y site Visits & Feasibility assessment
 y evaluation
 y recommendation  of the Committee

Community 
Proposals 
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building relationships Contd.

Csr aCtIVItIes In 2015
 

Assistance to the Special Children’s 
Foundation
We assisted the navodya special Children’s 
Foundation, located in Mount lavinia, 
which is dedicated to accommodate 
children who require special attention due 
to various ailments. the CrIb contributed 
towards the Foundation’s annual rent 
payment.

Donation of water purifier
there are 456 students following their 
education at the seevali Vidyalaya in 
senapura. We identified that purified 
water was a key requirement of the school. 
therefore, the CrIb donated a water 
purifier for the use of the school.

Book donation
We provided books for the use of grade 
1 - 6 students at the Vidyadeepa Vidyalaya, 
ranawana,thorayaya.
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Provision of construction material
the CrIb donated building materials to the 
gunawardanaramaya in slave Island.

Flood shelter
the CrIb constructed a shelter for a family, 
affected by flooding in Wattala.
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as a small organisation, by end 2015, 
our total staff strength stood at only 26 
employees including 8 management 
grade employees. We provide equal 
opportunities for growth for all our 
employees and all employees benefit from 
all statutory payments. In addition, we 
organise employee events for our staff and 
management to enjoy themselves and to 
socialise in an informal capacity.

HuMan resourCe aDMInIstratIon
Human resource administration at the 
CrIb is guided by the CrIb administration 
Manual. the Manual spells out the 
expected standard of behavior from 
all employees. area covered under the 
administration Manual include:

 y  remuneration system. this is based 
on the remuneration sub Committee’s 
recommendations that are approved by 
the board.

 y  the Disciplinary Code and inquiry 
procedure for disciplinary actions, 
including appeals on disciplinary 
verdicts.

 y  the CrIb communication policy.

 
CoVerage oF tHe organIsatIon's 
DeFIneD beneFIt Plan oblIgatIons
CrIb complies with all statutory payments 
to employees. the table below lists the 
ePF/etF contributions by company and 
employee. During the financial year 2015, 

our teaM

the CrIb contributed over rs 2.8 Mn to the ePF and rs 707,988 to the etF on behalf of 
CrIb employees.

EPF & ETF 2015 2014

ePF - Company 12% 2,831,951 2,271,264

ePF - employee 08% 1,887,967 1,514,176

etF 3% 707,988 567,816

traInIng anD eDuCatIon
training and skills development is considered a strategic priority by CrIb, to develop 
new services and to provide the highest standard of services required by our member 
institutions and the public. therefore, our employees receive both local and overseas 
training to develop their skills. During 2015 our employees from the management and 
executive grades received overseas training, while selected personnel from all three 
grades of management, executive and non-executive, received local training. During the 
year we invested over rs 1.4 Mn on training programmes.

During the financial year 2015, the CrIb invested in excess of rs 1.4 Mn on employee 
training in total.

traInIng Hours by genDer anD by Category 

Staff Training
Foreign Training 

(Investment in Rs)
Local Training 

(Investment in Rs)
Total  

(Investment in Rs)
Managerial
 Female    24,071  24,071 

 Male  1,266,620  104,352  1,370,972 

Executive
 Female      - 

 Male    27,300  27,300 

Non executive  
 Female    14,850  14,850 

 Male    39,950  39,950 

Total  1,266,620  210,523  1,477,144
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labour PraCtICes grIeVanCe MeCHanIsMs
the CrIb has a small team, which makes it possible to manage grievances informally in most cases. We believe this, opening quotation 
mark employee friendly’ work environment contributes towards workplace harmony, interdepartmental cooperation and smooth 
operations. CrIb employees are not unionised and all CrIb employees have direct access to all management and the general Manger to 
discuss any grievances.

under national labour legislations CrIb employees have the option to resort to formal grievance mechanisms such as the labour 
tribunal, in the event the grievance is not resolved in-house. However, to date the CrIb has not had any grievances brought through 
formal grievance mechanisms.
 
tHe CrIb grIeVanCe HanDlIng ProCess

employee
grievance

Immediate
supervisor

general
Manager no Further action

labour tribunal
yes

no
resolution

number of grievances about labour practices filed through formal grievance mechanisms during the reporting 
period

0

How many were addressed during the reporting period n/a

How many were resolved during the reporting period n/a

number of grievances about labour practices filed prior to the reporting period that were resolved during the 
reporting period.

n/a
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annual staFF gettogetHer
after a full year of hard work, the CrIb team took time off to relax on 19th December 2015 with a well deserved year break at thotopala 
lake resort, Piliyandala.

eMPloyee eVents at tHe CrIb
New Year Pirith Ceremony
We started the year with a pirith ceremony held at the CrIb office, to invoke blessings for the staff and CrIb activities during the year.

our team Contd.
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as a public service 
organisation, we 
believe natural 
resources are 
material to our 
organisation’s long 
term sustainability. 
this is primarily 
in the context of 
environmental 
responsibility on 
our part, rather than 
actual or potential 
environmental 
impacts through our 
activities.

Planet
the CrIb is a small service organisation 
with minimum environmental impacts. 
However, we believe we need to conserve 
our natural resources for the future 
wellbeing of our country and people. 
therefore, we have considered it material 
to report on our conservation efforts.

as a small service operation, with no 
involvement in manufacturing, our 
environmental impacts are limited to 
consumption of natural resources in 
the form of electricity, water and paper. 
our fuel consumption is exceptionally 
low, as 75% of our employees travel by 
public transport and do not use personal 
vehicles. our electricity consumption is 
primarily for purposes of lighting and 
air conditioning (cooling). our water 
consumption is limited to drinking and 
sanitary purposes. these consumption 
figures are given overleaf. We consume 
paper for official purposes but due to high 
computerisation, wastage of paper has 
been controlled. In addition, as a public 
service institution we accommodate 
considerable volumes of customers on a 
daily basis, at the CrIb office. therefore, 
our total consumption figures include the 
electricity and water consumption that 
occurs in meeting our customers’ needs.

enVIronMental resPonsIbIlIty

eleCtrICIty anD Fuel 
ConsuMPtIon
We have implemented a number of 
internal measures to control electricity 
and fuel consumption.

These include:
 y  raising awareness about conservation 

and creating an attitude aimed at 
preventing wastage. this includes 
advising our staff to switch off lights 
and a/Cs when leaving the premises.

 y  We attempt to reduce fuel consumption 
by using the same vehicle for several 
purposes, instead of using multiple 
vehicles for different uses.

 y  since 2014, we have initiated 
monitoring of energy and water 
consumption. We believe this 
would help sensitise employees and 
management towards preventing 
wastage.

these conservation measures have 
contributed towards electricity savings in 
2015. We are pleased to report that total 
electricity consumption fell from 175,395 
Kw in 2014, to 171,185 Kw in 2015 despite 
the growth in work volumes. In addition 
water consumption saw only a marginal 
0.5% increase despite a significant increase 
in the number of walk-in customers to the 
CrIb office.
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PaPer ConserVatIon
We continued the practices of using email whenever possible, printing on both sides of 
paper and sending e-invoices to our member institutions instead of traditional printed 
invoices to reduce wastage of paper. We also provide online ireports instead of printing 
personal credit reports.

CrIb energy anD Water ConsuMPtIon table 

Energy consumption 2015 2014

total fuel consumption from non-renewable sources: Petrol (l) 1,115  6,552

total fuel consumption from renewable fuel sources in joules 0 0

electricity consumption (Kw) 171,185 175,395

Cooling consumption not 
available

not 
available

total energy consumption in joules not 
available

not 
available

reduction in energy consumption due to conservation and 
efficiency initiatives in joules 

not available

types of energy included in the reductions: fuel, electricity, 
heating, cooling

not 
available

not 
available

Water 

total volume of water withdrawn from Municipal water 
supplies or other water utilities 

not 
available

not 
available

 Water board (l) 1,103 1296

 other (Water Mart bottled water) (l) 9,367 9120

 total (l) 10,470 10,416

Volume of water recycled and reused by the organisation. 0 0

environmental responsibility Contd.
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FInanCIal 
rePorts

this section of our annual report presents the 
audited financial accounts for the financial year 
2015 and other statutory disclosures: 

 y  the statement of Directors responsibility for 
Financial statements

 y  the annual report of the board of Directors 
on the affairs of the bureau

 y  the Independent auditors report to the 
shareholders of the CrIb 

 y  statement of Comprehensive Income
 y statement of Financial Position
 y statement in Changes in equity
 y Cash Flow statements
 y notes to the Financial statements
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the CrIb act no 18 of 1990 requires 
Directors to ensure that the bureau 
keeps proper books of accounts of all 
the transactions and prepare financial 
statements that give a true and fair view of 
the state of the affairs of the bureau and of 
the profit and loss for the year.

the Directors are also required to ensure 
that the financial statements have been 
prepared and presented in accordance 
with the sri lanka accounting standards 
and the sri lanka accounting and auditing 
standards act no. 15 of 1995.

they are also responsible for taking 
reasonable measures to safeguard the 
assets of the bureau, and in that context to 
have proper regard to the establishment 
of appropriate systems of internal control 
with a view to prevention and detection of 
fraud and other irregularities.

the Directors confirm that to the best 
of their knowledge and belief, all taxes 
and levies payable by the bureau and all 
contributions and taxes payable on behalf 
of and in respect of the employees of the 
bureau have been paid or provided for as at 
the reporting date.

the Directors are of the view that, these 
financial statements have been prepared 
under the generally accepted accounting 

stateMent oF DIreCtors’ resPonsIbIlItIes For FInanCIal stateMents

principles and in accordance with the sri 
lanka accounting standards as laid down 
by the Institute of Chartered accountants 
of sri lanka.

the Directors endeavor to ensure that the 
bureau maintains sufficient records to be 
able to disclose with reasonable accuracy, 
the financial position of the bureau and 
to be able to ensure that the financial 
statements of the bureau meet with the 
requirements of the sri lanka accounting 
standards and the sri lanka accounting 
and auditing standards act no. 15 of 1995

the Directors have reasonable expectation, 
after making inquiries and following 
a review of the bureau’s budget for the 
ensuing year including cash flows and 
borrowing facilities, that the bureau 
has adequate resources to continue in 
operational existence for the foreseeable 
future, and therefore have continued to 
adopt the going concern basis in preparing 
the accounts.

Messrs. ernst & young, Chartered 
accountants, the auditors of the bureau 
have examined the financial statements 
made available by the board of Directors 
together with all relevant financial records, 
related data, minutes of Directors meeting 
and express their opinion in their report 
on page 89 of the annual report.

by order of the board
Credit Information bureau of sri lanka

Secretary
Colombo

22 august 2016
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annual rePort oF tHe boarD oF DIreCtors on tHe aFFaIrs oF tHe 
bureau

the Directors are pleased to submit their 
report together with the audited accounts 
of the bureau for the year ended 31st 
December 2015, to be presented at the 
25th annual shareholder Meeting of the 
bureau.

reVIeW oF tHe year
the Chairman’s Message on pages 03 to 05,
and the Management Discussion and 
analysis chapters from pages 51 to 63, 
describe the affairs of the bureau and 
mention important events that occurred 
during the year. this report together with 
the audited financial statements reflect the 
state of the affairs of the bureau.

PrInCIPal aCtIVItIes / Core 
busIness
the main activity of the bureau is the 
business of collection and collation of 
trade credit and financial information 
on borrowers and prospective borrowers 
of lending institutions. Please refer the 
operation review on pages 59 to 61 for 
more information. 

FInanCIal stateMents
the financial statements prepared in 
compliance with the requirements of 
Credit Information bureau act no. 18 of 
1990.

InDePenDent auDItor’s rePort
the auditor’s report on the financial 
statements is given on page 89 in this report.

aCCountIng PolICIes
the accounting Policies adopted in 
preparation of the financial statements 
is given on pages 95 to 111 there were no 
changes in accounting Policies adopted by 
the bureau during the year under review.

FInanCIal results/ProFIt anD 
aPProPrIatIons
the Income statement is set out on page 90.

ProPerty, Plant & eQuIPMent
During the year under review the bureau 
invested a sum of rs. 5.355.335/-(2014 – rs 
12,827,733/-) in Computer accessories& 
equipment of which rs 501,000/- is in 
Intangible assets and rs 1,315,544/- is in 
Furniture and fixtures and Data Centre 
assets.

Information relating to movement in 
Property, Plant & equipment during the 
year is disclosed under note 104 to the 
financial statement.

InVestMents
Details of long-term Investments held by 
the bureau are given in note 09 to the 
financial statements on page 106.

DIreCtors’ resPonsIbIlItIes
the statement of the Directors’ 
responsibilities is given on page 86 of this 
report.

DIVIDenD
the Directors recommend the payment of 
a dividend for the financial year ended 31st 
December 2015

reserVes
the reserves and accumulated Profits as at 
31stDecember 2015 amount to rs. 3.332 Mn 
as against rs 2.673 Mn as at 31stDecember 
2014. the breakup and the movement are 
shown in the statement of Changes in 
equity in the financial statements.

stateD CaPItal
as per the terms of the Companies act no. 
7 of 2007, the stated capital of the bureau 
is rs. 25 Mn as at 31stDecember 2015 the 
details are given in note 13 to the financial 
statement on page 108.

Post balanCe sHeet eVents
there were no material events occurring 
after the balance sheet date that require 
adjustments, or disclosure which require 
adjustment in the Financial statements 
other than those mentioned in note 22 to 
the Financial statements.

statutory PayMents
the declaration relating to statutory 
Payments is made in the statement of 
Directors’ responsibilities on page 86.
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annual report of the board of Directors on the affairs of the bureau Contd.

boarD CoMMIttees
Please refer pages 47 to 50.

Directors
the Directors of the bureau as at 31st 
December 2015 and their brief profiles are 
given on pages 25 to 33 in this report.

During the year under review the board 
met on 13 occasions.

Auditors
the resolutions to appoint the present 
auditors, Messrs. ernst & young Chartered 
accountant, who have expressed their 
willingness to continue in office, will 
be proposed at the annual shareholder 
Meeting.

a sum of rs 210,000 was paid as audit fee 
during the year

as far as the Directors are aware, the 
auditors do not have any relationship 
or interest in the bureau. the audit 
Committee reviews the appointment 
of the auditors, its effectiveness and its 
relationship with the bureau including the 
level of audit and non-audit fees paid to the 
auditor. Details on the work of the audit 
Committee are set out under Corporate 
governance.

Notice of Meeting
the annual shareholders Meeting of the 
Credit Information bureau of sri lanka 
will be held on 22nd september 2016 at 
Kingsbury Hotel at 10.00 a.m.

For and on behalf of the board.

P. Samarasiri
Chairman

Sanjeewa Bandaranayake
Director

22 august 2016
Colombo
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InDePenDent auDItor’s rePort to tHe sHareHolDers oF CreDIt 
InForMatIon bureau oF srI lanKa

rePort on tHe FInanCIal 
stateMents
We have audited the accompanying 
financial statements of Credit Information 
bureau of sri lanka, (“the bureau”), which 
comprise the statement of financial 
position as at 31 December 2015, and the 
statement of comprehensive income, 
statement of changes in equity and, 
statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory 
information. set out on pages 95 to 111.

boarD’s resPonsIbIlIty For tHe 
FInanCIal stateMents
the board of Directors (“board”) is 
responsible for the preparation of these 
financial statements that give a true and 
fair view in accordance with sri lanka 
accounting standards, and for such 
internal controls as board determines is 
necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to 
fraud or error.

auDItor’s resPonsIbIlIty
our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on 
our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with sri lanka auditing 
standards. those standards require that 
we comply with ethical requirements 
and plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free from material 
misstatement.

an audit involves performing procedures 
to obtain audit evidence about the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. the procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgment, 
including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error. 
In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant 
to the entity’s preparation of the financial 
statements that give a true and fair view in 
order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not 

for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 
control. an audit also includes evaluating 
the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting 
estimates made by board, as well as 
evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have 
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion.

oPInIon
In our opinion, the financial statements 
give a true and fair view of the financial 
position of the bureau as at 31 December 
2015, and of its financial performance 
and cash flows for the year then ended in 
accordance with sri lanka accounting 
standards.

22 august 2016
Colombo 
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  Note 2015 2014 
   Rs. rs.

Revenue  3 872,923,609 847,877,477
Other Operating Income  4 191,077,107 166,565,705
Employee Related Expenses   (51,970,876) (41,520,403)
Administration & Establishment Expenses   (47,046,408) (40,601,580)
Other Operating Expenses   (95,741,525) (93,297,815)
Secured Transaction Registry   (4,875,547) (4,319,816)
 
Profit Before tax   864,366,361 834,703,568
Income Tax Expense  5 (53,473,919) (46,590,550)
Profit for the year   810,892,442 788,113,017
 
Other Comprehensive Income 
Gains and Losses on Remeasuring Available for Sale Financial Assets   875,765 (1,487,775)
Actuarial gain or loss retirement benefit   (417,959) 679,494
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year   811,350,248 787,304,735
 
Earnings Per Share  17 3,244 3,152

the accounting policies and notes on pages 95 through 111 form an integral part of the Financial statements.

stateMent oF CoMPreHensIVe InCoMe
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As at 31 December 2015  Note 2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.
 
ASSETS 
Non-Current Assets 
Equipment  7 17,948,352 23,252,637
Intangible Assets  8 11,867,847 25,636,429
   29,816,199 48,889,066
 
Current Assets 
Inventories  10 282,685 342,197
Trade and Other Receivables  11 188,901,374 182,618,704
Other Current Financial Assets  9 3,117,183,585 2,455,562,554
Cash and Cash Equivalents  12 28,544,753 21,932,164
   3,334,912,397 2,660,455,619
Total Assets   3,364,728,596 2,709,344,686
 
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
Capital & Reserves 
Stated Capital  13 25,000,000 25,000,000
Reserves   1,118,593,369 1,117,356,878
Retained Earnings   2,191,009,116 1,530,895,558
Total Equity   3,334,602,485 2,673,252,436
 
Non-Current Liabilities 
Retirement Benefit Liability  14 4,351,840 3,411,972
   4,351,840 3,411,972
 

stateMent oF FInanCIal PosItIon
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As at 31 December 2015  Note 2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.
 
Current Liabilities 
Trade and Other Payables  15 19,439,476 20,751,717
Dividends Payable   1,227,121 903,121
Income Tax Liabilities   - 9,104,993
Cash and Cash Equivalents  10 5,107,674 1,920,445
   25,774,271 32,680,277
Total Equity and Liabilities   3,364,728,596 2,709,344,685

Chief Manager (Accounts and Administration)
(Dinesha I. A. Jayasinghe)

the board of Directors is responsible for the preparation and presentation of these Financial statements. signed for and on behalf of the 
board by:

 
Chairman  Director

the accounting policies and notes on pages 95 through 111 form an integral part of the Financial statements.

22 august 2016
Colombo

statement of Financial Position Contd.
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stateMents oF CHanges In eQuIty

Year ended 31 December 2015 Stated General Other Technical  Available for sale Retained Total 
 Capital Reserve Reserves Reserves Reserve Earnings 
 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.

As at 1st January 2014 25,000,000 2,270,913 2,000,000 1,113,631,943 612,209 842,432,635 1,985,947,700
Net Profit for the year - - - - - 788,113,017 788,113,017
AFS Reserve measurements - - - - (1,487,775) 679,494 (808,281)
Transferred to General Reserves - 329,588 - - - (329,588) -
Transferred to Technical Reserve - - - - - - -
Dividends - - - - - (100,000,000) (100,000,000)

Balance as at 31st December 2014 25,000,000 2,600,501 2,000,000 1,113,631,943 (875,566) 1,530,895,558 2,673,252,436
 
Net Profit for the year - - - -  810,892,442 810,892,442
Transferred to General Reserves - 360,925 - -  (360,925) -
Other Comprehensive Income - - - - 875,566 (417,959) (457,607)
Transferred to Technical Reserves - - - - -  -
Dividends - - - - - (150,000,000) (150,000,000)

As at 31 December 2015 25,000,000 2,961,426 2,000,000 1,113,631,943 - 2,191,009,116 3,334,602,485

the accounting policies and notes on pages 95 through 111 form an integral part of the Financial statements.
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CasH FloW stateMents

Year ended 31 December 2015   2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.

Cash Flows From / (Used in) Operating Activities 
Profit/(loss) before tax   864,366,361 834,703,567
 
Adjustments for 
Depreciation   11,975,163 12,605,416
Amotisation   14,289,583 15,790,714
Income from Investments   (191,077,107) (166,565,705)
(Profit)/Loss on sales of Property, Plant & Equipment   - -
Provision for Defined Benefit Plans   952,034 816,085
Operating Profit/(Loss) before Working Capital Changes   700,506,034 697,350,077

(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories   59,512 27,557
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade and Other Receivables   (6,282,669) (63,195,218)
Increase/ (Decrease) in Trade and Other Payables   (1,312,241) 8,549,967
Cash Generated from Operations   692,970,635 642,732,383
 
Esc Paid   (2,309,251) (1,897,160)
Gratuity Paid   (430,125) -
Income Tax Paid   (53,747,565) (52,510,983)
Net Cash From/(Used in) Operating Activities   636,483,694 588,324,240
 
Cash Flows from / (Used in) Investing Activities 
Acquisition of Property, Plant & Equipment   (6,670,879) (13,710,232)
Proceeds from Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment   6,369 (2,589,419)
Acquisition of Investments   (631,188,150) (646,373,579)
Interest Received   181,471,318 187,448,774
Net Cash Flows from/(Used in) Investing Activities   (456,381,342) (475,224,456)
 
Cash Flows from (Used in) Financing Activities 
Dividends Paid   (149,676,000) (99,820,000)
Net Cash Flows from/(Used in) Financing Activities   (149,676,000) (99,820,000)
 
Net Increase/(Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents   30,426,352 13,279,784
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the beginning of the year   63,019,861 49,740,077
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the end of the year   93,446,214 63,019,861

the accounting policies and notes on pages 95 through 111 form an integral part of the Financial statements.
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notes to tHe FInanCIal stateMents

1. CorPorate InForMatIon
1.1 General
Credit Information bureau of sri lanka 
is a Corporate body incorporated and 
domiciled in sri lanka under the Credit 
Information bureau of sri lanka act no.18 
of 1990 as amended by act no.8 of 1995 and 
act no.42 of 2008. the office of the bureau 
is located at the Whiteaways building, 
no 25, sir baron Jayathilake Mawatha, 
Colombo 01.

1.2 Principal Activities and Nature of  
Operations
During the year, the principal activities 
of the bureau were to collect and collate 
trade, credit and financial information 
about borrowers and prospective 
borrowers of lending institutions, 
and to provide credit information on 
request, to lending institutions who 
are the shareholders of the bureau 
and simultaneously to borrowers and 
prospective borrowers to whom such 
information relate, with a view to 
facilitating the distribution of credit to all 
sectors of the economy and to the informal 
sector, in particular

1.3 Date of Authorisation for Issue
the financial statements of Credit 
Information bureau of sri lanka for the year 
ended 31 December 2015 were authorised for 
issue in accordance with a resolution of the 
board of Directors on 22nd august 2016.

2.0 suMMary oF sIgnIFICant  
aCCountIng PolICIes
2.1 General Policies
2.1.1 Basis of Preparation
the financial statements have been 
prepared on a historical basis. the 
financial statements are presented in sri 
lanka rupees.

2.1.2 Statement of Compliance
the financial statements of the bureau 
have been prepared in accordance with sri 
lanka accounting standards (slFrs and 
lKas) as issued by Institute of Chartered 
accountants of sri lanka (Ca sri lanka) 
and the preparation and presentation 
of these Financial statements is in 
compliance with the Credit Information 
bureau of sri lanka act no.18 of 1990 as 
amended by act no.8 of 1995 and act no.42 
of 2008.

2.1.3 Going Concern
the Directors have made an assessment of 
the bureau’s ability to continue as a going 
concern and they do not intend 
either to liquidate or to cease trading.

2.1.4 Comparative Information
Comparative information is reclassified 
where ever necessary to comply with 
current presentation.

2.2 Significant Accounting   
Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions
Estimates and Assumptions
the preparation of financial statements 
in conformity with slFrs/lKas requires 
management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and 
disclosure of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and the reported amounts 
of revenue and expenses during the 
reporting period. actual results could differ 
from those estimates. the estimates and 
underlying assumptions are reviewed on 
ongoing basis. revisions to accounting 
estimates are recognised in the period in 
which the estimate is revised if the revision 
affects only that period or in the period 
of the revision and future periods if the 
revision affects both current and future 
periods.

the key assumptions concerning the 
future and other key sources of estimation 
uncertainty at the balance sheet date, that 
have a significant risk of causing a material 
adjustment to the carrying amounts 
of assets and liabilities within the next 
financial year are discussed below.

Impairment of Loans & Receivables
the bureau provides services to member 
institutions on credit terms. We know that 
certain debts due to us will not be paid 
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through the default of a small number 
of our customers. Current conditions 
prevail in the internal and external 
environment and historical trends are 
used in determining the level of debts that 
we believe will not be collected. these 
estimates include such factors as the 
current state of the economy, particular 
industry issues, and debt collection trends.

Useful life for Property, Plant and 
Equipment
the property, plant and equipment in the 
bureau are estimated to carry economic 
useful lives lasting over year. remaining 
useful lives are assessed annually and 
changed when necessary to reflect their 
remaining lives in light of technological 
change, network investment plans, 
prospective economic utilisation and 
physical condition of the assets concerned. 
Principal depreciation rates used are 
discussed under note 2.3.6.

Defined Benefit Plan – Gratuity
the defined benefit obligation and the 
related charge for the year is determined 
using actuarial valuations. the actuarial 
valuation involves making assumptions 
about discount rates, future salary 
increases, mortality rates etc. Due to the 
long-term nature of such obligations 
these estimates are subject to significant 
uncertainty.

Fair value of financial instruments
When the fair value of financial assets 
and financial liabilities recorded in the 
statement of financial position cannot 
be derived from active markets, their 
fair value is determined using valuation 
techniques including the discounted cash 
flow model. the inputs to these models 
are taken from observable markets where 
possible, but where this is not feasible, 
a degree of judgement is required in 
establishing fair values. the judgements 
include considerations of inputs such as 
liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. 
Changes in assumptions about these 
factors could affect the reported fair value 
of financial instruments.

2.3 Summary Of Significant Accounting  
Policies
2.3.1 Foreign Currency Translation
the Financial statements are presented 
in sri lanka rupees, which is the bureau's 
functional and presentation currency. 
transactions in foreign currencies are 
initially recorded at the functional 
currency rate ruling at the date of the 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities 
denominated in foreign currencies are 
retranslated at the functional currency 
rate of exchange ruling at the balance sheet 
date.

all differences are taken to the income 
statement with the exception of all 
monetary items that forms part of a net 

investment in a foreign operation. these 
are recognised in other comprehensive 
income until the disposal of the net 
investment, at which time they are 
reclassified to profit or loss. tax charges 
and credits attributable to exchange 
differences on those monetary items are 
also recorded in other comprehensive 
income.

non monetary items that are measured 
in terms of historical cost in a foreign 
currency are translated using the 
exchange rates as at the dates of the 
initial transactions. non monetary 
items measured at fair value in a foreign 
currency are translated using the exchange 
rates at the date when the fair value was 
determined. the gain or loss arising on 
translation of non-monetary items is 
recognised in line with the gain or loss of 
the item that gave rise to the translation 
difference (translation differences on items 
whose gain or loss is recognised in other 
comprehensive income or profit or loss is 
also recognised in other comprehensive 
income or profit or loss respectively).

2.3.2 Revenue Recognition
revenue is recognised to the extent that 
it is probable that the economic benefits 
will flow to the bureau and the revenue 
and associated costs incurred or to be 
incurred can be reliably measured. 
revenue is measured at the fair value of 
the consideration received or receivable 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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net of trade discounts and sales taxes. the 
following specific criteria are used for the 
purpose of recognition of revenue.

a) Rendering of Services
Income from credit reports furnished to 
constituent shareholders is recognised. 
as revenue, as and when the services are 
provided.

b) Interest
For all financial instruments measured 
at amortised cost and interest bearing 
financial assets classified as available-for-
sale, interest income or expense is recorded 
using the effective interest rate (eIr), 
which is the rate that exactly discounts the 
estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of the financial 
instrument or a shorter period, where 
appropriate, to the net carrying amount 
of the financial asset or liability. Interest 
income is included in other operating 
income.

c) Others
other income is recognised on an accrual 
basis.

gains and losses arising from incidental 
activities to main revenue generating 
activities and those arising from a group 
of similar transactions, which are not 
material, are aggregated, reported and 
presented on a net basis.

2.3.3 Expenditure Recognition
a) expenses are recognised in the income 

statement on the basis of a direct 
association between the cost incurred 
and the earning of specific items of 
income. all expenditure incurred in 
the running of the business and in 
maintaining the Property, Plant and 
equipment in a state of efficiency has 
been charged to income in arriving at 
the profit for the year.

b) For the purpose of presentation of 
income statement the directors are of 
the opinion that function of expenses 
method presents fairly the elements of 
the bureau’s performances, hence such 
presentation method is adopted.

2.3.4 Taxation
Current Taxes
the provision for income tax is based on 
interest income in the financial statement 
and computed in accordance with the 
provisions of the Inland revenue act no.10 
of 2006.

2.3.5 Leases
the determination of whether an 
arrangement is, or contains, a lease is 
based on the substance of the arrangement 
at the inception date, whether fulfilment 
of the arrangement is dependent on the 
use of a specific asset or assets or the 
arrangement conveys a right to use the 
asset, even if that right is not explicitly 
specified in an arrangement.

(a) Operating leases
leases where the lessor effectively retains 
substantially all the risk and benefits 
of ownership over the leased term are 
classified as operating leases. rental paid 
under leases are recognised as an expenses 
in the income statement on a straight-line 
basis over the lease term.

2.3.6 Equipment
equipment is stated at cost, net of 
accumulated depreciation and/or 
accumulated impairment losses, if any. 
such cost includes the cost of replacing 
component parts of equipment and 
borrowing costs for long-term construction 
projects if the recognition criteria are met. 
When significant parts of equipment are 
required to be replaced at intervals, the 
bureau derecognises the replaced part, 
and recognises the new part with its own 
associated useful life and depreciation. 
likewise, when a major inspection is 
performed, its cost is recognised in the 
carrying amount of the equipment as a 
replacement if the recognition criteria are 
satisfied. all other repair and maintenance 
costs are recognised in the income 
statement as incurred.

an item of equipment and any significant 
part initially recognised is derecognised 
upon disposal or when no future economic 
benefits are expected from its use or 
disposal. any gain or loss arising on 
derecognition of the asset (calculated as 
the difference between the net disposal 
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proceeds and the carrying amount of the 
asset) is included in the income statement 
when the asset is derecognised. the assets’ 
residual values, useful lives and methods of 
depreciation are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, if 
appropriate.

the asset's residual values, useful lives and 
methods of depreciation are reviewed, and 
adjusted if appropriate, at each financial 
year end.

Depreciation is calculated on a straight line 
basis over the useful life of the assets.

the principal annual rates used are as 
follows:

Computer and accessories 25% p.a.
sundry assets 20 % p.a
Furniture and Fittings 20 % p.a
Data Center 20 % p.a

2.3.7 Intangible Assets
Identifiable intangible assets are 
recognised when the bureau controls the 
asset, it is probable that future economic 
benefits attributed to the asset will flow to 
the bureau and the cost of the asset can be 
reliably measured.

Finite lives intangible assets
Intangible assets with finite lives are 
stated at acquisition or development 
cost, less accumulated amortisation. the 
amortisation period and methods reviewed 

at least annually. Changes in the expected 
useful life or the expected pattern of 
consumption of future economic benefits 
embodied in the asset is accounted for 
by changing the amortisation period or 
method, as appropriate, and are treated 
as changes in accounting estimates. 
the amortisation expense on intangible 
assets with finite lives is recognised in the 
income statement in the expense category 
consistent with the function of the 
intangible asset.

software 25%

2.3.8 Financial instruments — initial  
recognition and subsequent measurement

2.3.8.1 Financial assets
(a) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial assets within the scope of Ias 
39 are classified as financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss, loans and 
receivables, held-to-maturity investments, 
available-for-sale financial assets as 
appropriate. the bureau determines the 
classification of its financial assets at 
initial recognition.

all financial assets are recognised initially 
at fair value plus, in the case of assets not 
at fair value through profit or loss, directly 
attributable transaction costs.

Purchases or sales of financial assets 
that require delivery of assets within a 
time frame established by regulation or 

convention in the marketplace (regular 
way trades) are recognised on the trade 
date, i.e., the date that the bureau commits 
to purchase or sell the asset.

the bureau financial assets include cash 
and short-term deposits, trade and other 
receivables, Investment in governments’ 
securities and repurchase agreement.

Subsequent measurement
the subsequent measurement of financial 
assets depends on their classification as 
follows:

(b) Loans and Receivables
loans and receivables are non-derivative 
financial assets with fixed or determinable 
payments that are not quoted in an 
active market. after initial measurement, 
such financial assets are subsequently 
measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method (eIr), less 
impairment. amortised cost is calculated 
by taking into account any discount or 
premium on acquisition and fees or costs 
that are an integral part of the eIr. the eIr 
amortisation is included in finance income 
in the income statement. the losses arising 
from impairment are recognised in the 
income statement in finance costs.
(c) Available for Sale
Investment in treasury bill & treasury 
bonds are classified as available-for-sale 
are those, which are neither classified 
as held to maturity nor designated at 
fair value through profit or loss. In this 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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category are those which are intended to 
be held for an indefinite period of time and 
which may be sold in response to needs for 
liquidity or in response to changes in the 
market conditions.

after initial measurement, available-
for-sale financial investments are 
subsequently measured at fair value with 
unrealised gains or losses recognised 
as other comprehensive income in 
the available-for-sale reserve until the 
investment is derecognised, at which time 
the cumulative gain or loss is recognised in 
other operating income, or determined to 
be impaired, at which time the cumulative 
loss is reclassified to the income statement 
in finance costs and removed from the 
available-for-sale reserve.

Derecognition
a financial asset is derecognised when:

 y the rights to receive cash flows from 
the asset have expired

 y the bureau has transferred its rights 
to receive cash flows from the asset 
or has assumed an obligation to pay 
the received cash flows in full without 
material delay to a third party under 
a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and 
either (a) the bureau has transferred 
substantially all the risks and rewards 
of the asset, or (b) the bureau has 
neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards 
of the asset, but has transferred control 
of the asset.

When the bureau has transferred its rights 
to receive cash flows from an asset or has 
entered into a pass-through arrangement, 
and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all of the risks and rewards 
of the asset nor transferred control of it, 
the asset is recognised to the extent of the 
bureau’s continuing involvement in it.

(d) Impairment of financial assets
a financial asset or a group of financial 
assets is deemed to be impaired if, and 
only if, there is objective evidence of 
impairment as a result of one or more 
events that has occurred after the initial 
recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss 
event’) and that loss event has an impact 
on the estimated future cash flows of the 
financial asset or the group of financial 
assets that can be reliably estimated. 
evidence of impairment may include 
indications that the debtors or a group 
of debtors is experiencing significant 
financial difficulty, default or delinquency 
in interest or principal payments, the 
probability that they will enter bankruptcy 
or other financial reorganisation and 
where observable data indicate that there 
is a measurable decrease in the estimated 
future cash flows, such as changes in 
arrears or economic conditions that 
correlate with defaults.

Financial assets carried at amortised cost
For financial assets carried at amortised 
cost, the bureau first assesses whether 
objective evidence of impairment exists 

individually for financial assets that are 
individually significant, or collectively for 
financial assets that are not individually 
significant. If the bureau determines that 
no objective evidence of impairment exists 
for an individually assessed financial asset, 
whether significant or not, it includes the 
asset in a group of financial assets with 
similar credit risk characteristics and 
collectively assesses them for impairment. 
assets that are individually assessed for 
impairment and for which an impairment 
loss is, or continues to be, recognised are 
not included in a collective assessment of 
impairment.
 
If there is objective evidence that an 
impairment loss has been incurred, the 
amount of the loss is measured as the 
difference between the assets carrying 
amount and the present value of estimated 
future cash flows (excluding future 
expected credit losses that have not yet 
been incurred). the present value of the 
estimated future cash flows is discounted 
at the financial asset’s original effective 
interest rate. the carrying amount of the 
asset is reduced through the use of an 
allowance account and the amount of the 
loss is recognised in the income statement. 
Interest income continues to be accrued 
on the reduced carrying amount and is 
accrued using the rate of interest used 
to discount the future cash flows for the 
purpose of measuring the impairment loss. 
the interest income is recorded as part of 
finance income in the income statement. 
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If, in a subsequent year, the amount of the 
estimated impairment loss increases or 
decreases because of an event occurring 
after the impairment was recognised, the 
previously recognised impairment loss 
is increased or reduced by adjusting the 
allowance account. If a future write-off is 
later recovered, the recovery is credited to 
finance costs in the income statement.

2.3.8.2 Financial liabilities
(a) Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of 
Ias 39 are classified as financial liabilities 
at fair value through profit or loss, loans 
and borrowings, as appropriate. the 
bureau determines the classification of its 
financial liabilities at initial recognition.

all financial liabilities are recognised 
initially at fair value and, in the case of 
loans and borrowings, carried at amortised 
cost. this includes directly attributable 
transaction costs.

the bureau’s financial liabilities include 
trade and other payables.

Derecognition
a financial liability is derecognised 
when the obligation under the liability is 
discharged or cancelled or expires. When 
an existing financial liability is replaced 
by another from the same lender on 
substantially different terms, or the terms 
of an existing liability are substantially 
modified, such an exchange or 

modification is treated as a derecognition 
of the original liability and the recognition 
of a new liability, and the difference in the 
respective carrying amounts is recognised 
in the income statement.

2.3.8.3 Offsetting of financial   
instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities 
are offset and the net amount reported in 
the consolidated statement of financial 
position if, and only if, there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the 
recognised amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, or to 
realise the assets and settle the liabilities 
simultaneously.

2.3.8.4 Fair value of financial 
instruments
the fair value of financial instruments 
that are traded in active markets at each 
reporting date is determined by reference 
to quoted market prices or dealer price 
quotations (bid price for long positions and 
ask price for short positions), without any 
deduction for transaction costs.

For financial instruments not traded in an 
active market, the fair value is determined 
using appropriate valuation techniques. 
such techniques may include using 
recent arm’s length market transactions; 
reference to the current fair value of 
another instrument that is substantially 
the same; a discounted cash flow analysis 
or other valuation models.

2.3.9 Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost 
and net realisable value, after making 
due allowances for obsolete and slow 
moving items. net realisable value is the 
price at which inventories can be sold 
in the ordinary course of business less 
the estimated cost of completion and the 
estimated cost necessary to make the sale.

the cost incurred in bringing inventories 
to its present location and conditions 
are accounted using the following cost 
formulae.

stationery – at accrual Cost on First in 
First out basis

2.3.10 Impairment of non financial assets
the bureau assesses at each reporting date 
whether there is an indication that an asset 
may be impaired. If any such indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing 
for an asset is required, the bureau makes 
an estimate of the asset's recoverable 
amount. an asset's recoverable amount is 
the higher of an asset's or cash-generating 
unit's fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use and is determined for an 
individual asset, unless the asset does 
not generate cash inflows that are largely 
independent of those from other assets 
or groups of assets. Where the carrying 
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable 
amount, the asset is considered impaired 
and is written down to its recoverable 
amount. In assessing value in use, the 

notes to the Financial statements Contd.
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estimated future cash flows are discounted 
to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market 
assessments of the time value of money and 
the risks specific to the asset. In determining 
fair value less costs to sell, an appropriate 
valuation model is used. these calculations 
are corroborated by valuation multiples or 
other available fair value indicators.

Impairment losses of continuing 
operations are recognised in the 
income statement in those expense 
categories consistent with the function 
of the impaired asset, except for property 
previously revalued where the revaluation 
was taken to equity. In this case the 
impairment is also recognised in equity up 
to the amount of any previous revaluation.

For assets, an assessment is made at each 
reporting date as to whether there is any 
indication that previously recognised 
impairment losses may no longer exist or 
may have decreased. If such indication 
exists, the bureau makes an estimate 
of recoverable amount. a previously 
recognised impairment loss is reversed only 
if there has been a change in the estimates 
used to determine the asset's recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss 
was recognised. If that is the case the 
carrying amount of the asset is increased 
to its recoverable amount. that increased 
amount cannot exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of 
depreciation, had no impairment loss been 

recognised for the asset in prior years. 
such reversal is recognised in the income 
statement unless the asset is carried at 
revalued amount, in which case the reversal 
is treated as a revaluation increase.

2.3.11 Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are cash in hand, 
demand deposits and short-term highly 
liquid investments, readily convertible to 
known amounts of cash and subject to 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of cash flow statement, 
cash and cash equivalents consist of cash 
in hand and deposits in banks net of 
outstanding bank overdrafts. Investments 
with short maturities i.e. three months or 
less from the date of acquisition are also 
treated as cash equivalents.

2.3.12 Provision
Provisions are recognised when the 
bureau has a present obligation (legal or 
constructive) as a result of a past event, 
where it is probable that an outflow of 
resources embodying economic benefits 
will be required to settle the obligation 
and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation. the expense 
relating to any provision is presented 
in the income statement net of any 
reimbursement.

2.3.13 Retirement Benefit Obligations
a) Defined Benefit Plan – Gratuity
Defined benefit plan defines an amount 

of benefits that an employee will receive 
on retirement, usually dependent on 
or more factors as years of service and 
compensation. gratuity is a Defined benefit 
Plan. the bureau is liable to pay gratuity 
in terms of the relevant statute. In order 
to meet this liability, a provision is carried 
forward in the financial position and the 
bureau. the cost of providing benefits under 
the defined benefit plans are determined 
separately for each plan using the projected 
unit credit actuarial valuation method. 
actuarial gains and losses are charged or 
credited in the period in which they arise.

the past service cost is recognised as an 
expense on a straight line basis over the 
average period until the benefits become 
vested. If the benefits are already vested 
immediately following the introduction 
of, or changes to, a pension plan, past 
service cost is recognised immediately. the 
defined benefit asset or liability comprises 
the present value of the defined benefit 
obligation less past service cost not yet 
recognised and less the fair value of plan 
assets out of which the obligations are to 
be settled directly. the value of any asset is 
restricted to the sum of any past service cost 
not yet recognised and the present value of 
any economic benefits available in the form 
of refunds from the plan or reductions in 
the future contributions to the plan.

gratuity liability is not externally funded.
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b) Defined Contribution Plans – 
Employees’ Provident Fund & 
Employees’ Trust Fund

employees are eligible for employees’ 
Provident Fund Contributions and 
employees’ trust Fund Contributions 
in line with the respective statutes and 
regulations. the bureau contributes 12% 
and 3% of gross emoluments of employees 
to employees’ Provident Fund and 
employees’ trust Fund respectively.

2.4 STANDARDS ISSUED BUT NOT YET 
EFFECTIVE
the following slFrss have been issued 
by the Institute of Chartered accountants 
of sri lanka that have an effective date 
in the future and have not been applied 
in preparing these financial statements. 
those slFrss will have an effect on the 
accounting policies currently adopted by 
the Company and may have an impact 
on the future financial statements. none 
of those have been early adopted by the 
group.

SLFRS 9 Financial Instruments
slFrs 9 replaces the existing guidance 
in lKas 39 Financial Instruments: 
recognition and Measurement. slFrs 
9 includes revised guidance on the 
classification and measurement of 
financial instruments, a new expected 
credit loss model for calculating 
impairment on financial assets, and new 

general hedge accounting requirements. 
It also carries forward the guidance on 
recognition and derecognition of financial 
instruments from lKas 39.

slFrs 9 is effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018, with early adoption permitted.

SLFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts
slFrs 14 is an interim standard which 
provides relief for first time -adopters 
of slFrs in relation to the accounting 
for certain balances that arise from 
rate-regulated activities (‘regulatory 
deferral accounts’). the standard permits 
these entities to continue to apply their 
previous gaaP accounting policies for the 
recognition, measurement, impairment 
and derecognition of regulatory deferral 
accounts.

SLFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers
slFrs 15 establishes a comprehensive 
framework for determining whether, how 
much and when revenue is recognised. 
It replaces existing revenue recognition 
guidance, including lKas 18 revenue, 
lKas 11 Construction Contracts and IFrIC 
13 Customer loyalty Programmes.

slFrs 15 is effective for annual reporting 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 
2018, with early adoption permitted.
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   2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.
 
3. reVenue
Credit Information   1,035,663,051 1,007,732,463
Less
Discount Allowed   (66,717,845) (58,100,267)
Value Added Tax   (96,021,597) (101,754,719)
   872,923,609 847,877,477

 
4. otHer oPeratIng InCoMe
Interest Income   190,350,438 166,093,684
Loss on sale of Fixed Assets   -
Staff Loan Interest   535,432 393,547
Sundry Income   72,223 11,644
Self Inquiry Income   119,014 66,830
   191,077,107 166,565,705

 
5. InCoMe taX
The major components of income tax expense for the years ended 31 December are as follows : 
Income Statement 
Current Income Tax 
Current Income Tax Charge   53,448,044 46,590,550
Over /Under Provision   25,875 -
Income tax expense reported in the Income Statement   53,473,919 46,590,550
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Year ended 31 December 2015   2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.
 
6. ProFIt beFore taX
Stated After Charging 
Included in Administrative Expenses 
Employees Benefits Including the following 
- Defined Benefit Plan Costs - Gratuity (Included in Employee Benefits)   952,034 816,085
- Defined Contribution Plan Costs - EPF&ETF (Included in Employee 'Benefits)   3,539,939 2,840,454
Depreciation   11,975,163 12,605,416
Amortisation of Intangible Assets   14,192,644 15,790,714
Auditor's Fees and Expenses   210,000 190,000
Legal Fees   172,080 471,520
Directors Fees   822,500 720,000
Donations   104,500 202,000
 
 
 Balance Additions/  Balance 
 As at Transfers/ Disposals/ As at 
 01.01.2015 Acquisitions Transfers 31.12.2015 
 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
 
7. eQuIPMent
7.1 At Cost
Computer & Accessories 78,809,208 5,355,335 1,984,592 82,179,951
Computer & Accessories -STR 149,400 - - 149,400
Furniture, Fittings & Office Equipment 8,019,495 1,315,544 11,750 9,323,288
Sundry Assets 85,267 - - 85,267
Data Centre 15,099,008 - - 15,099,008
  102,162,378 6,670,879 1,996,342 106,836,914
 
Depreciation 
Computer & Accessories 60,087,957 9,729,791 1,984,592 67,833,156
Computer & Accessories -STR 139,347 10,053 - 149,400
Furniture, Fittings & Office Equipment 7,179,836 507,264 11,750 7,675,350
Sundry Assets 59,934 8,798 - 68,732
Data Centre 11,442,666 1,719,257 - 13,161,923
  78,909,740 11,975,163 1,996,342 88,888,561
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   2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.
 
Net Book Values
At Cost 
Computer & Accessories   14,346,795 18,721,248
Computer & Accessories -STR   - 10,053
Furniture, Fittings & Office Equipment   1,647,938 839,658
Sundry Assets   16,535 25,334
Data Centre   1,937,084 3,656,344
   17,948,352 23,252,637

Total Carrying Amount of Property, Plant & Equipment   17,948,352 23,252,637
 
7.2 Equipment includes fully depreciated assets having a gross carrying amounts of Rs. 70,345,305/- (2014 - Rs. 50,563,502/-). 
     
 
 
 System  Computer Software Total 
 Development Software STR 
 Costs Development Costs 
 Rs. Rs. Rs. Rs.
 
8. IntangIble assets
Cost 
As at 01 January 2015 59,841,208 81,825,790 387,756 142,054,753
As at 31 December 2015 59,841,208 82,346,790 387,755 142,575,753
 
Additions - 521,000 - 521,000
 - 521,000 - 521,000
 
Amortisation 
As at 01 January 2015 55,282,210 60,853,265 282,849 116,418,324
Amortisation for the Year 2,624,660 11,567,984 96,939 14,289,582
As at 31 December 2015 57,906,870 72,421,249 379,788 130,707,906
 
Net book value 
As at 01 January 2015 4,558,998 20,972,525 104,906 25,636,429
As at 31 December 2015 1,934,338 9,925,541 7,968 11,867,847
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8.1 Intangible Assets include fully depreciated assets having a gross carrying amounts of Rs. 109,264,254/- (2014 - Rs. 77,761,114/-). 

   2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.

9. otHer FInanCIal InstruMents
9.1 Available for sale financial instruments
Treasury Bills   - 776,005,095
   - -
   - 776,005,095
 
Non Current   - -
Current   - 776,005,095
 
9.2 Loans and Receivables
Receivable Under Resale Agreements (Repo)   2,614,695,604 1,473,908,558
Fixed Deposit   502,487,981 205,648,901
   3,117,183,585 1,679,557,459
 
Non Current   - -
Current   3,117,183,585 1,679,557,459
 
9.3 total non Current  
Total Current   3,117,183,585 2,455,562,554
 
 
   2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.
 
10. InVentorIes
Stationery   282,685 342,197
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   2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.
 
11. traDe anD otHer reCeIVables
Financial Assets 
Trade Debtors (9.1)   149,367,578 167,006,296
Loan to Bureau Staff   5,266,671 4,144,298
Pre paid Staff Expenses   648,398 599,359
Deposits for Safe Lockers   45,000 45,000
Receivable   50,000 56,289
   155,377,647 171,851,242
 
Non Financial Assets 
Advances & Prepayments   21,524,233 10,276,253
Taxes Receivable   11,999,494 491,209
   33,523,727 10,767,462
   188,901,374 182,618,704
 
11.1 As at 31 December, the ageing analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
 Past Due but Not Impaired
 Total Neither Past  <30 30 -60 61 - 90 < 90 
  Due Nor  days days days days 
 Rs Impaired Rs Rs Rs Rs 
 149,367,578 69,871,412  67,861,343 9,233,206 2,401,618
 
 
   2015 2014 
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents   Rs. Rs.
 
12. CasH anD CasH eQuIValents
12.1 Favorable Cash & Cash Equivalents Balance
Cash & Bank Balances   638,806 564,342
Saving Accounts balances   27,905,947 21,367,822
   28,544,753 21,932,164
Government Securities   70,009,135 43,008,143
   98,553,888 64,940,307
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   2015 2014 
Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents   Rs. Rs.
 
12.2 Unfavorable Cash & Cash Equivalents Balance
Bank Overdraft *   (5,107,674) (1,920,445)
Total Cash and Cash Equivalents for the Purpose of Cash Flow Statement   93,446,214 63,019,862
* This is due to unpresented cheques
 
 
 2015 2014
 Number Rs. Number Rs.
 
13. stateD CaPItal
Ordinary Shares 250,000 25,000,000 250,000 25,000,000
 250,000 25,000,000 250,000 25,000,000
 
 
   2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.
 
14. retIreMent beneFIt lIabIlIty
Retirement Benefits Obligation-Gratuity 
As at 1st January   3,411,972 3,275,382
Charge for the Year   952,034 816,085
Actuarial Gains/Losses   417,959 (679,495)
Payments Made During the Year   (430,125) -
As at 31 December   4,351,840 3,411,972
 
14.1 Defined Benefit Liability is valued as of 31 December 2015 and the principal assumptions used in the valuation is as follows:
 
   2015 2014
 
Discount Rate   10.50% 8%
Annual Salary Increment Rate   5% 6%
Staff Turnover   1% 1%
Average Remaining Life   20 7
Sensitivity Effect on Net Liability as at 31 December 2015   - -
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    Rs.
 
Discount Rate   +1% (303,781)
   - 1% 340,157
Salary Increment Rate   +1% 343,401
   - 1% (311,670)
 
 
   2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.
 
15. traDe anD otHer Payables
Financial Liability 
Trade Payables   4,153,065 2,560,547
Other Payables   870,598 621,057
Accrued Expenses   7,734,394 4,527,564
   12,758,057 7,709,168
 
Non Financial Liability 
Other Payables   6,681,419 13,042,550
   19,439,476 20,751,718
 
 
   2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.
 
16. DIVIDenDs PaID anD ProPoseD
Declared during the year 
Dividends on Ordinary Shares :   162,500,000 150,000,000
   162,500,000 150,000,000

Dividend Per Share (Rs.)   650 600
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17. earnIngs Per sHare
Basic Earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average 
number of Ordinary Shares outstanding during the year. 
 
   2015 2014
 
Net Profit attributable to Ordinary Shareholders (Rs.)   810,892,442 788,113,017
Weighted Average number of Ordinary Shares -   250,000 250,000
Earnings per Share (Rs.)   3,244 3,152
 
 
18. FaIr Values
The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, investments in repo, Investments in fixed deposits, trade 
payables, bank overdrafts and other current liabilities approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these 
instruments.

19. CoMMItMents anD ContIngenCIes
Capital Commitments
Approved but not contracted for

The board has approved the purchase of software to up grade the Credit Information Management System and Selection process is underway.

20. rIsK ManageMent obJeCtIVes & PolICIes
The Bureau’s main financial liabilities include trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is to support to 
operations of the Bureau. The Bureau has financial assets including trade and other receivables, cash and short-term deposits that arrive 
directly from its operations and Treasury bills & Treasury bonds as available-for-sale investments. The Bureau has following risk types.

(a) Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market 
interest rates. It is a risk that future proceeds will have to be re-invested at a lower rate. But the interest income is not a main income of the 
Bureau. Therefore there is less possibility for interest rate risk to effect it’s main operations.

(b) Credit Risk
Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading to a 
financial loss. since the customers of the bureau are registered financial institutions, the exposure from default is minimum.
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21. relateD Party DIsClosure
Details of significant related party disclosures are as follows:
 
   2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.
 
21.1 Key Management Personnel Compensation
Short-Term Employee Benefits   8,588,188 6,369,103
Total   - 6,369,103
 
Other Transactions with Key Management Personnel 
 
   2015 2014 
   Rs. Rs.
 
21.2 Loans to Key Management Personnel
Interest Received   - 5,787

Loans advanced to Key Management Personnel have the followings terms and conditions.
- Loans for the purpose of vehicle which is unsecured carry interest rate of 6% is repayable monthly.

22. eVents oCCurrIng aFter tHe rePortIng Date
There have been no material events occurring after the reporting date that require adjustments to or disclosures in the Financial Statements.
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CreDIt InForMatIon bureau oF 
srI lanKa

InCorPoratIon
established under Credit Information 
bureau of sri lanka
act no. 18 of 1990 as amended by act no. 
08 of 1995 & 42 of 2008.

FunCtIons oF tHe bureau
 y to collect and collate credit and 

financial information on borrowers 
and prospective borrowers of lending 
institutions.   

 y to provide credit information on 
request, to shareholder lending 
institutions and simultaneously to 
borrowers to whom such information 
relate, and to instill credit discipline in 
the financial sector.   

 y to establish a credit-rating system in 
sri lanka. 

 y to undertake credit rating and to sell 
such credit ratings to any foreign and 
local agencies, or to any person making 
a request for such ratings.  

 y to undertake research and training 
projects for shareholder lending 
institutions. 

 y to operate a filing office of secured 
transactions to register the security 

CorPorate InForMatIon

interest of movables with a view to 
facilitate the distribution of credit to 
all sectors of the economy and to the 
informal sector in particular. 

boarD oF DIreCtors 
Mr. P. Samarasiri
[Chairman]
Deputy Governor - Central Bank of Sri Lanka
Mr. A. A. M. Thasim
[Director]
Bank Supervision Department Central Bank 
of Sri Lanka
Mr. D. M. Gunasekara
[Director]
General Manager - Bank of Ceylon
Mr. N. V. Kumar
[Director]
General Manager - People’s Bank
Mr. D. Rodrigo 
[Director]
Chief Operating Officer - Hatton National 
Bank 
Mr. S. Bandaranayake
[Director]
Deputy General Manager - Finance & 
Administration - People’s Leasing & Finance 
PLC 
Mr. N. Wijekoon 
[Director]
Chief Executive Officer - Softlogic Finance PLC 
Mr A. R. Fernando 
[Director]
Chief Executive Officer - DFCC Bank PLC
Mr.  D. Senevirathna
[Director]

Chief Executive Officer - Pan Asia Banking 
Corporation PLC
Mr. K. A. Janaka Lakmal
[Acting General Manager - CRIB]

boarD oF DIreCtors (retIreD)
Mr. B. D. W. Ananda Silva
[Chairman]
Deputy Governor - Central Bank of Sri Lanka
Mr. G. P. Karunaratne
[Director / General Manager]
Credit Information Bureau of Sri Lanka 
Mrs. T. M. J. Y. P. Fernando
[Director]
Bank Supervision Department Central Bank 
of Sri Lanka
Mr. J. E. P. A. De Silva
Senior Advisor - Alliance Finance PLC
Mr.  I. Wickramasinghe
Executive Director/ Chief Executive Officer 
Union Bank
Ms. W. A. Nalini 
Chairperson National Saving Bank
Mr. R. Ganegoda
[Director]
Chief Operating Officer - Nations Trust Bank 
PLC
Ms. S. H. Gunawardena 
[Director] 
Director Bank supervision (Central Bank of 
Sri Lanka)
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alternate DIreCtors
Mr. S. M. S. C. Jayasuriya 
Deputy General Manager
Bank of Ceylon
Mr. K. B. Rajapakse 
Senior Deputy General Manager
People’s Bank
Mr. Rohan Muttiah
Chief Operating Officer
National Development Bank PLC 
Mr.  F.  Perera
Deputy General Manager
Commercial Bank of Ceylon PLC

alternate DIreCtors (retIreD)
Mr N. de Silva 
Union Bank of Ceylon PLC

boarD auDIt CoMMIttee
Mr. S. Bandaranayake
Deputy General Manager - Finance & 
Administration - People’s Leasing & Finance 
PLC
Mr. A. A. M. Thasim
[Director Bank Supervision]
Department Central Bank of Sri Lanka
Mr. A. R. Fernando
Chief Executive Officer of DFCC Bank PLC

boarD auDIt CoMMIttee (retIreD)
Mrs. T. M. J. Y. P. Fernando
Controller of Exchange
Exchange Control Department Central Bank 
of Sri Lanka

Mr. R. Ganegoda
Chief Operating Officer - Nations Trust Bank 
PLC

boarD teCHnICal CoMMIttee
Mr. D. Rodrigo 
Chief Operating Officer - Hatton National 
Bank 

boarD teCHnICal CoMMIttee 
(retIreD)
Mrs. T. M. J. Y. P. Fernando
Bank Supervision Department Central Bank 
of Sri Lanka
Mr. I. Wickramasinghe
Controller of Exchange
Exchange Control Department Central Bank 
of Sri Lanka
Mr. R. Ganegoda
Chief Operating Officer - Nations Trust Bank 
PLC

boarD reMuneratIon CoMMIttee
Mr. N. V. Kumar
General Manager - People’s Bank
Mr. S. Bandaranayake 
Deputy General Manager - Finance & 
Administration - People’s Leasing & Finance 
PLC

ManageMent 
Mr. K. A. Janka Lakmal 
Acting General Manager

Ms. D. I. A. Jayasinghe 
Chief Manager - Accounts & Administration
Mrs. R. M. S. Ratnayake 
Chief Manager - Operations
Mr. A. Nihal Piyasiri 
Chief manager-IT

ManageMent (retIreD / resIgneD)
Mr. G. P. Karunaratne 
General Manager
Mr. D. H. Ponnumperuma
Assistant General Manager

eXternal auDItors
ernst & young
201, De saram Place, P o box 101, Colombo 
10, sri lanka.

Internal auDItors
KPMg (Chartered accountants)
32 a, sir Mohamed Macan Markar 
Mawatha, P.o. box 186, Colombo 03, sri 
lanka.

laWyers
Varners
level 14, West tower, World trade Centre, 
Colombo 01, sri lanka.

PrInCIPal banKer
bank of Ceylon
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seCureD transaCtIons regIster
Help Desk: + 94 112 333 744
email: supportdesk@str.lk
Web: www.str.lk
business Hours: 8 am to 4.15 pm
Customer service: 9 am to 3.30 pm

regIstereD oFFICe
the Whiteaways building, 
no 25, sir baron Jayathilake Mawatha, 
Colombo 01.

ContaCt DetaIls
Hotline: +94 112 13 13 13
Fax: +94 112 338 259
e-mail: info@crib.lk
Website: www.crib.lk
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